¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Date: Thursday, 19 November 2015

Committee:
Pensions Committee

Date: Friday, 27 November 2015
Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire,

SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting.
The Agenda is attached.

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of the Committee:
Thomas Biggins

Anne Chebsey

Andrew B Davies

Malcolm Pate

Co-opted Members (Voting):
Charles Smith
Malcolm Smith

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith (Pensioner Representative)
Nigel Neat (Employee Representative)
Vacancy (Employee Representative)

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper



Substitute Members of the Committee:
Joyce Barrow (SC)

Roger Evans (SC)

Stuart West (SC)

Michael Wood (SC)

Arnold England (T&W)

Rob Sloan (T&W)

Vacancy (Employee Rep)

Vacancy (Employee Rep)

Vacancy (Pensioner Rep)

Your Committee Officer is:

Sarah Townsend Committee Officer
Tel: 01743 257721
Email: sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2015 are attached for
confirmation, marked 3.

Contact: Sarah Townsend (01743 257721)

Public Questions

HarbourVest (Private Equity)

Ms Hannah Tobin and Mr Peter Wilson will give a presentation.

BlackRock (Hedge Funds)

Mr Simon Betteley and Mr John Ware will give a presentation.

Brevan Howard (Hedge Funds)

Ms Anouck De Somer and Mr Magnus Olsson will give a presentation.

Alternative Indexation

Mr John Belgrove and Mr Louis-Paul Hill, from Aon Hewitt, will present this item.

Statement of Investment Principles (Pages 7 - 22)
The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 9.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Corporate Governance Monitoring (Pages 23 - 54)
The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 10.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

Pensions Administration Monitoring (Pages 55 - 62)
The report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 11.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

New Policy - Breaches Policy (Pages 63 - 78)

The report of the Head of Finance, Governance & Assurance (Section 151
Officer) is attached, marked 12.

Contact: James Walton (01743 255011)

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider approving a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council's
Access to Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in
relation to Agenda ltems 14 to 16 shall not be conducted in public on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
by the categories specified against them.

Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 79 - 82)

The exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2015 are attached for
confirmation, marked 14.

Contact: Sarah Townsend (01743 257721)

New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 83 - 86)

The exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked
15.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 30 September 2015 (Exempted by
Category 3) (Pages 87 - 138)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 16.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item| 3

| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

Pensions Committee

¥a¥ Shropshire

= Council 27 November 2015

10.00 am

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 SEPTEMBER
2015
10.15 AM - 12.37 PM

Responsible Officer: Sarah Townsend
Email: sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: 01743 257721

Present:

Members of the Committee:
Councillor Malcolm Pate (Chairman)
Councillors Thomas Biggins and Andrew Davies

Co-Opted Members (Voting):
Charles Smith

Co-Opted Members (Non-Voting):
Nigel Neat and Jean Smith

16 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anne Chebsey and Malcolm
Smith.

Apologies for absence were also received from Councillors Arnold England, Roger
Evans and Rob Sloan (Substitute Members).

Councillor Charles Smith (Voting Co-opted Member), Mr Nigel Neat (Non-Voting Co-
opted Member) and Mr Mike Morris (Pensions Board Member but in attendance as
an Observer) were welcomed to their first Pensions Committee meeting.

17 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on
any matter in which they had a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the
room prior to the commencement of the debate.

18 Minutes
RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2015 be approved and signed by
the Chairman as a correct record.

Page 1



| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

19

20

21

22

Public Questions

There were no public questions.

Harris Associates (Global Equities)

Mr Euan MacLaren and Mr Mike Manelli gave a presentation on the performance of
their Global Equity Portfolio as of 30 June 2015.

Members were firstly provided with an organisational overview before Mr Manelli
went on to explain the reasons for the underperformance of the portfolio. Members
were also taken through the ten largest and smallest contributors to performance
between 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015, following which, questions were asked in
relation to the recent market volatility and the driving factors behind the
underperformance.

Investec Asset Management (Global Equities) and Government Budget
Announcement

Mr Stephen Lee and Mr lan Vose gave a presentation on the performance of the
Investec Global Dynamic Equity Fund as of 30 June 2015. Members were informed
that since the inception of the Fund on 30 September 2013, it had outperformed its
comparative index, the MSCI ACWI (All Country World Index) by 3.7%.

Members were taken through the performance of the portfolio's stocks and their
sector attribution between 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 together with details of
the stocks that had been bought and sold over this period.

Mr Lee also gave a presentation on the Summer Budget 2015 and its impact on the
Local Government Pension Scheme. In brief, in 2014, the Hymans Robertson report
to the Government provided a structure analysis on Local Government Pension
Schemes with the primary purpose of quantifying the potential for cost savings
across the LGPS. The Summer Budget 2015 detailed how the findings of this report
were to be taken forward. Mr Lee explained that a consultation on "Criteria" had
already started and that a further consultation was expected later this year on new
investment regulations and "back stop" legislation which would be applied if any fund
did not come up with sufficiently ambitious proposals that met this “Criteria”.

LDI Strategy
Mr John Belgrove and Mr Louis-Paul Hill, from Aon Hewitt, gave a presentation on
Shropshire Investment Strategy Proposal - Liability Driven Investment (LDI) and

Unconstrained Bonds.

Members had the opportunity to ask questions and were informed that the Officer
recommendations would be voted upon in the Exempt part of the meeting.

Page 2



| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

23

24

Internal Audit Outturn Report for Shropshire County Pension Fund 2014/15

The Committee received the report of the Audit Service Manager (copy attached to
the signed Minutes) which provided Members with details of the work undertaken by
Internal Audit for the year ended 31 March 2015. It was reported that final
performance had been good with 100% of the annual Audit Plan being delivered.
Four good and one reasonable assurances were made in 2014/15 and a total of
nineteen recommendations had been made in the five audit reports related to the
year. One ‘significant’ recommendation was made in the Altair Pension Application
audit and the remaining recommendations were rated as ‘requiring attention’ or ‘best
practice’.

It was reported that on the basis of the work undertaken and management responses
received, the Pension Fund’'s governance, risk management and internal control
processes were sound and working effectively. The Audit Service Manager was
therefore able to deliver a positive year end opinion on the Fund’s internal control
environment for 2014/15.

RESOLVED:
(a) That performance against the Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2015 be
endorsed.

(b) That the Audit Service Manager’s positive year end opinion on the Fund’s
governance, risk management and internal control environment for 2014/15, on
the basis of the work undertaken and management responses received, be
endorsed.

External Audit - The Audit Findings for Shropshire County Pension Fund
2014/15

The Committee received the report of the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, (copy
attached to the signed Minutes) which highlighted the key matters arising from the
audit of Shropshire County Pension Fund’s financial statements for the year ending
31 March 2015.

Mr John Gregory and Mr Ashley Wilson were in attendance and advised the meeting
that it was anticipated that an unqualified opinion in respect of the Fund's financial
statements would be provided and that the key messages arising from the audit
were:

e That the draft and final version of the financial statements recorded net assets
carried forward of £1,512,730,000 and that no material adjustments affecting
the Fund’s net assets position had been identified; and

e That a number of minor adjustments to the notes to the financial statements
had been agreed with Officers.

Mr Gregory informed the meeting that one non-trivial adjustment that netted to £0.7m
had been identified in respect of discrepancies between the values of investments
reported by the custodian and fund managers but that Officers were not proposing to
amend the 2014/15 financial statements as the values were not materially different.

Page 3



| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

25

26

27

Following the meeting, it was noticed that there was a typing error on page 6 of the
report and that the last paragraph under the heading ‘Key issues arising from our
audit’ needed to be amended to read ‘Officers are not proposing to amend for this in
2014/15, as the values are not materially different. If an amendment were made it
would decrease both the Fund's reported surplus and net assets by £0.7m. The
Pensions Committee is asked to approve management's proposed treatment and
recognition of this and the associated disclosure within the Letter of Representation
(further details are on page 17)’.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the content of the report of the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, be noted.

(b) That the management’s proposed treatment of the one non-trivial adjustment
be approved.

(c) That the signing of the Letter of Representation be approved.

Pension Fund Annual Accounts 2014/15

The Committee received the report of the Head of Finance, Governance and
Assurance (copy attached to the signed Minutes) which provided Members with the
Shropshire County Pension Fund Annual Report 2014/15 and an update on the
annual audit.

RESOLVED:
That the Pension Fund Annual Report 2014/15 be approved.

Corporate Governance Monitoring

The Committee received the report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions (copy
attached to the signed Minutes) which informed Members of Corporate Governance
and socially responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 01 April 2015 to 30
June 2015.

RESOLVED:
That the position as set out in the report, Manager Voting Reports (Appendix A) and
F&C Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report (Appendix B) be accepted.

Pensions Administration Monitoring

The Committee received the report of the Pension Administration Manager (copy
attached to the signed Minutes) which provided Members with monitoring information
on the performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

It was reported that there was a typing error on paragraph 9.7 of the report and that
Shropshire Council Members' term of office ended in 2017 and not 2016 as stated
within the report.

It was noted that the Pensions Regulator had provided a free e-learning programme
and the Committee were advised to undertake this training. The e-learning

Page 4



| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

28

29

30

’ 143

programme could be accessed via the Regulator’s “Trustee Toolkit” on their website:
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/. Committee Members would be
contacted further about this in due course.

RESOLVED:
That the position as set out in the report by the Pension Administration Manager be
accepted.

Collaborative Working with other Local Government Pension Funds

The Committee received the report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions (copy
attached to the signed Minutes) which informed Members of discussions that had
been taking place with other Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
Administering Authorities and sought delegated authority to continue this work.

The report also provided an update to Members on the wider national position in
respect of collaboration within the LGPS, and in particular the potential impact of an
announcement contained within the Summer Budget. Members were updated on the
National Collaboration work which was being co-ordinated by Hymans in which Joint
Working Groups had been set up in order to submit a joint response to Government
on two or three pooling options. The Shropshire Fund is one of 25+ other funds
involved in contributing to this work.

Members were informed that the seven Funds involved in discussions appeared to
have sufficient ‘critical mass’ to be able to jointly procure passive investment
management services at a cost that was significantly lower than the individual Funds
were currently paying. It was noted that since the report had been written, an
investment consultant, bfinance, had been selected by the seven Funds.

RESOLVED:
(a) That the position as set out in the report be noted.

(b) That authority be delegated to the Head of Finance, Governance and
Assurance in consultation with the Chairman if necessary to conclude the
matter of joint procurement of a passive investment manager with other LGPS
administering authorities.

Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED:

That under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules,
the proceedings of the Committee in relation to Minutes 30 to 32, be not conducted in
public on the grounds that they might involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined by the category specified against them.

Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)

RESOLVED:
That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2015 be approved and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Page 5


https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/

| Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 25 September 2015

31

32

New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3)

The Committee received the exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with details
regarding two new Employer admissions to the Fund, both under Schedule 2 Part 3
Regulation 1(d)(i) of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, due
to services transferring from a Scheme Employer, under a service contract.
Members were also provided with details of a potential admission to the Fund.

The report also provided confirmation of a new admission, which under the
governance arrangements, had been approved by the Chairman of the Pensions
Committee between committee meetings, to allow the sealing of the Admission.
Confirmation of four new Schedule 1 Part 1 Scheme Employer (Academies) who
would or had joined the Fund, along with one closure were also reported.

RESOLVED:
That the recommendations in the exempt report by the Pension Administration
Manager be approved.

Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 30 June 2015 (Exempted by Category 3)

The Committee received the exempt report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with
monitoring information on investment performance and managers for the quarter
period to 30 June 2015 and reported on the technical meetings held with managers
since the quarter end.

RESOLVED:
That the position as set out in the exempt report by the Head of Treasury and
Pensions be noted.

(The full version of Minutes 31and 32 constitutes exempt information under Category
3 of Paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Rules and has
accordingly been withheld from publication).

Signed (Chairman)

Date:

Page 6



A ' Committee and Date Iltem
s : S h ro p S h | re Pensions Committee
& Council 9
27 November 2015
10.00am Public

Agenda ltem 9

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

1.

Responsible Officer Justin Bridges
e-mail:  justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: (01743)
252072

Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with an update to the Pension Fund's
Statement of Investment Principles to reflect changes to the Fund's
investment management arrangements. The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) have published guidance on
the application of the Myners Principles in the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Statement of Investment Principles
outlines the Fund’s compliance with these principles.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to approve, with or without comment, the
revised Statement of Investment Principles at Appendix A.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 The Statement of Investment Principles sets out the Fund’s approach
to managing risk within its investments.

3.2  The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3  There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change
consequences of this proposal. The Statement of Investment
Principles sets out the Pension Fund’s approach to Ethical,
Environmental and Socially Responsible Investments.

3.4  The Statement of Investment Principles is published on the Scheme’s
website.

Page 7


mailto:justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk

| Pensions Committee, 27 November 2015: STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

4,

Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Background

5.1 Pension Schemes within the Local Government Pension Scheme are
required to publish a Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) and to
further publish any changes to the SIP.

5.2  Shropshire’s original SIP was published in 2000 and revisions have

been made each year if required since then to reflect changes to the
strategic asset allocation and investment management arrangements
of the Fund. Following any changes to the SIP it is published and made
available on the website.

Statement of Investment Principles

6.1

6.2

The SIP outlines the Shropshire County Pension Fund investment
objectives. The primary long term objective is to achieve and maintain
a funding level at, or close to 100% of the Fund’s estimated liabilities;
and within this, to endeavour to maintain low and stable employers’
contribution rates.

The SIP also outlines the types of investments held, the approach to
risk and diversification, expected returns on investments and the Funds
approach to social, environmental and ethical investments.

Myners Principles

7.1

7.2

In response to the Treasury report Updating the Myners Principles:A
Response to Consultation (October 2008), Local Government Pension
Schemes are required to prepare, publish and maintain statements
against a set of six principles for pension fund investment, scheme
governance, disclosure and consultation. These principles replace the
ten Myners principles published in 2001 which Local Government
Pension Schemes were required to report against previously.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy (CIPFA) has
published guidance on the application of the six Myners Principles to
the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Fund is required to take a
‘comply or explain’ in the following six areas;-

o Effective decision making
e Clear objectives

¢ Risk and liabilities

e Performance assessment

e Responsible ownership

| Contact: Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

DPDaan Q
Fageo




Pensions Committee, 27 November 2015: STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

e Transparency and reporting

7.3  The Fund’'s compliance against the six principles is published within the
SIP. Attached at Appendix A is the revised Statement of Investment
Principles for Members approval.

8. Publication

8.1  The revised Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) will be published
and distributed to investment advisors, investment managers and
scheme employers following approval. The SIP will also be available
on the Fund website.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information
Pensions Committee, 20 March 2014, Statement of Investment Principles

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A - Statement of Investment Principles (revised November 2015)

o

)]
Q
o®
(o]

| Contact: Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072




This page is intentionally left blank



Shropshire County Pension Fund

Statement of Investment Principles

1. Introduction

The purpose of the Statement of Investment Principles (‘the Statement’) is to document the principles,
policies and beliefs by which the Pensions Committee of the Shropshire County Pension Fund (“the
Fund”) manages the Fund’s assets. This document takes account of:

= The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2009

= The requirements of the Pensions Act 2004

= The requirements of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Investment) Regulations 2005;
= The principles of the Myners Code

» CIPFA guidance

The Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”), of which the Fund is a part, is established under the
Superannuation Act 1972 and is regulated by a series of Regulations made under the 1972 Act.

Shropshire Council is the Administrating Authority for the Fund

The Pensions Committee consulted with employing bodies and received written advice from the Fund’s
investment consultant, Aon Hewitt, on this statement.

There are close links between this statement and two other statements. The Funding Strategy
Statement (“FSS”) sets out the main aims of the fund and explains how employers’ contribution rates
are set to achieve those aims. The Governance Compliance Statement sets out the structure of
delegations of responsibilities for the Fund.

A copy of this Statement will be sent to each investment manager hired by the Fund, the auditor, the
actuary and the investment consultant. A copy will also be sent to members of the Pension Board.

The Statement will be reviewed annually and when there is a significant change in the Fund’s
circumstances.

2. Governance

Shropshire Council has delegated to the Pensions Committee the administration of the Pension Fund,
and the functions relating to local government pensions, etc., as set out in Schedule 1 to the Functions
Regulations. The main areas of investment responsibility include:

= determination of strategic asset allocation;
= determination of portfolio structure;
= selection and appointment of external investment managers; and

= ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the investment arrangements.

The Pensions Committee is made up of nine members comprising both elected councillors and non-
voting employee and pensioner representatives.

Page 11



Members of the Pensions Committee recognise that they have a duty to safeguard, above all else, the
financial interests of the Fund’s beneficiaries. Beneficiaries, in this context, are considered to be the
Fund Members (pensioners, employees and employers), together with local Council Tax Payers.

2.1 Advice and Consultation

Members of the Committee receive independent investment advice from the following sources

= Roger Bartley - strategic and overall investment approach advice.

= Aon Hewitt - analysis and advice of a technical nature in relation to all investment related aspects of
the pension fund including (but not limited to) portfolio construction, manager monitoring and
appointment, and interpretation of performance measurement information.

The Fund's Scheme Administrator has responsibilities under S151 of the Local Government Act 1972
and provides financial (non-investment) advice to the Committee, including advice on financial
management, issues of compliance with internal regulations and controls, budgeting and accounting
and liaison with independent advisers.

2.2 Liabilities

The LGPS is a defined benefit pension scheme which provides benefits related to the salary of
members. The Scheme is a contributory defined benefit arrangement, with active members and
employing authorities contributing to the Scheme.

The value of the Fund’s ongoing liabilities is sensitive to various demographic (principally longevity) and
financial factors. The financial factors relevant to the fund’s investment policy are:

= the rate of return on assets;
= salary escalation for active members;
= price inflation for pensioners; and

= long-term interest rates.

2.2 Maturity and Cashflow

The Fund remains open to new members and new accruals. Contributions are received from both
active members and Employing authorities. Active members contribute on a tiered system. Employing
authorities contributions are determined based on advice from the Fund’s actuary based on the triennial
valuation.

3. Objectives

The Fund’s primary long term investment objective is to achieve and maintain a funding level at, or
close to, 100% of the Fund’s estimated liabilities; and within this, to endeavour to maintain low and
stable employers’ contribution rates. Given the constraints on local authority spending, volatility in the
employer’s contribution rate is undesirable.

4. Risks

The Committee regards ‘risk’ as the likelihood that it fails to achieve the objectives set out above and
has taken several measures, which are set out in this Statement, to minimise this risk so far as is
possible.

In particular, in arriving at the investment strategy and the production of this Statement, the Committee
have considered the following key risks:

= asset-liability mismatch risk (asset allocation risk)

= the need to pay benefits when due (cash-flow risk)

Page 12



= actions by the investment managers (investment risk)
= the failure of some investments (concentration risk)
= currency and counterparty risk

= custody risk

In terms of magnitude, the Committee considers asset-liability mismatch risk to be one of the most
important to control. Therefore, following each actuarial valuation, the Committee conducts an
asset/liability review, which focuses on the impact of asset allocation on expected future funding levels.
The Committee considers the results using advanced modelling techniques, and, with the assistance of
expert advisers, are able to measure and quantify them in terms of their definitions of risk. This allows
the Committee to assess the probabilities of critical funding points associated with different investment
strategies.

Consideration is given to the volatility of a number of parameters (e.g. items associated with accounting
measures, contributions etc.), to further assess the potential risks associated with a particular
investment strategy.

The process of risk management continues through to implementation. The decision as to whether to
pursue active management is evaluated separately for each asset class, with regard to the potential
reward within that class for taking on active risk. Active risk is then diversified through the use of
different investment managers and pooled funds. Each investment manager appointed by the
Committee is bound by the terms and conditions of an Investment Management Agreement where
restrictions and targets are clearly documented, including a measure of risk. The pooled fund
investments and direct investments are governed by the terms and conditions of the fund and or policy
documents. Frequent monitoring of portfolio performance and exposure characteristics also aids in the
ongoing risk management for the Fund.

5. Strategic Asset Allocation

The Committee regards the choice of asset allocation policy as the decision that has most influence on

the likelihood of achieving their investment objective. The Committee retains direct responsibility for this
decision which is made on the advice of their investment adviser with input from their Fund actuary and
in consultation with the Employing Authorities.

The investment strategy will normally be reviewed every three years. In addition if there is a significant
change in the capital markets, in the circumstances of the Fund or in governing legislation then an
earlier review may be conducted.

In keeping within the regulatory framework set out in the LGPS regulations, the Committee formulates
the investment strategy with a view to

= the advisability of investing money in a wide variety of investments

= the suitability of particular investment and types of investment
The Committee will consider a full range of investment opportunities including:

= quoted and unquoted equity

= government and non-government bonds
= Liability Driven Investment (LDI)

= property and infrastructure

= hedge funds and other alternative investments

The Committee further considers the legality of all investments for compliance with the LGPS.

The Committee determines the strategic asset allocation policy after considering projections of the
Fund’s assets and liabilities which are calculated by the Fund’s investment adviser, in liaison with the

Page 13



Fund’s actuary. This asset-liability study examines different combinations of assets to determine which
combination will best meet the Fund’s objectives.

5.1 Expected return on investments
The study takes into account the particular liabilities of the Fund.

In addition to a full specification of the Fund’s benefits, the study will make important assumptions about
the behaviour of various asset classes (such as their expected return over long periods of time and the
variability of those returns) and the liabilities in the future. In framing these assumptions, it is assumed
that:

s Equities may be expected to outperform other asset classes over the long term, but the returns are
more unpredictable over the short term. Gilts in turn can be expected to outperform cash deposits
but with greater variability.

= Asset classes do not perform in the same way; some may go up in value while others are going
down.

= The performance of certain asset classes (particularly index-linked gilts) is more closely linked to
the behaviour of inflation than others and so they represent a good match for liabilities linked to
inflation.

Expected annualised returns are formulated for each asset class based on long term capital market
assumptions, using ten year expected returns and volatilities. The returns and volatilities used for each
asset class are shown in the table below, and represent the current 10 year annualised nominal return
assumptions from Aon Hewitt at 31 December 2013 (as used in the Asset-Liability Modelling study
carried out in May 2014) and at 30 September 2015.

31 December 2013 30 September 2015
e e Expecteiz Return Vol':’l/:ility Expecteoz Return Voli/:ility
UK Equities 7.7 20.0 7.3 19.0
Global Unconstrained Equities 10.1 21.8 8.9 214
Global Passive Equities 7.7 19.8 7.3 20.5
UK Property 71 14.5 6.0 12.5
UK Gilts (15 year duration) 3.6 11.0 2.6 11.0
el L
CL’Jlﬁ;tnigﬁ;(-Linked Gilts (15 year 26 90 19 90
Unconstrained Bonds - - 5.7 10.0
Global Fund of Hedge Funds 5.4 8.0 4.6 9.0
Multi-Strategy Hedge Funds 5.9 8.3 6.3 12.0
Global Private Equity 9.2 26.0 9.1 27.5
Infrastructure (USD) 8.1 204 7.0 19.0
Inflation (CPI) 23 - 20 -

Page 14



5.2 Investment strategy

The Fund’s strategic asset allocation was agreed by Pensions Committee in September 2015 and
following implementation, will be as follows:.

Asset Class Allocation Control Ranges
Total Equity 52.0 47.0 - 57.0
Unconstrained Global Equity 24.0 20.0-28.0
UK Equity 8.0 55-10.5
Passive Equity (100% Hedged to GBP) 20.0 16.0-24.0
Total Alternatives 23.0 18.0 — 28.0
European (Incl UK) Property 5.0 n/a
Private Equity 5.0 n/a
Infrastructure 3.0 n/a
Fund of Hedge Funds 5.0 n/a
Multi-Strategy Hedge Funds 5.0 n/a
Total Bonds 25.0 20.0 - 30.0
Liability Driven Investment (LDI) 3.5 2.0-5.0
Unconstrained Bonds 21.5 17.5-25.5

5.3 Rebalancing policy

Officers will review the position of the fund quarterly to ensure the assets are within the control ranges
listed above, and will rebalance as appropriate.

5.4 Currency hedging policy

The Committee considers currency risk as an unrewarded risk — one that is expected to increase the
volatility of the Fund, but not increase return. Passive equity investments are fully currency hedged by
the investment managers.

6. Implementation

The Committee have appointed investment managers to manage the Fund'’s investments as set out in
the Appendix.

The Committee believe the use of active management within the Fund will increase the likelihood that
the Fund will meet its objectives.

The Committee also avails of passive management where they believe the extra risk and costs of active
management would not benefit the Fund and to manage overall risk.

The activities of each manager are governed by their Investment Management Agreement. This

includes details on the portfolio performance objectives and risk limits as well as information on
permissible investments.

Page 15



6.1 Selection & realisation of investment

Each investment manager has full discretion in terms of stock selection within the constraints of the
investment management agreement signed with each manager. The majority of investments held within
the Fund are quoted on major markets and may be realised quickly, if required. Certain asset classes,
Hedge funds, Private Equity, Property and Infrastructure are relatively illiquid and may take longer to
realise, if required.

The current list of investment managers and pooled funds used with a view to implementing the above
strategy is set out in the Appendix A to this document. The Appendix is included for information only,
and does not form part of the Statement of Investment Principles.

6.3 Security Lending

The fund reactivated its security lending policy with Northern Trust in February 2011, having temporarily
paused the lending activity in the period after the collapse of Lehmans. The collateral arrangements for
the lending programme have been tightened on advice from Aon Hewitt, and the programme restarted.

The manager(s) of pooled funds may undertake a certain amount of stock lending on behalf of unit-
holders. Where a pooled fund engages in this activity the extent is fully disclosed by the manager.
6.2 Custody

The Committee regards the safekeeping of the Fund’s assets as of paramount importance and has
appointed Northern Trust company as global custodian and record-keeper of the Fund’s assets.

7. Review and Control

The Committee are satisfied that they have adequate resources to monitor the investment
arrangements.

7.1 Performance Measurement
The Committee monitors the strategy and its implementation as follows.

= The Committee receives, on a quarterly basis, a written report on the returns of the fund and asset
classes together with supporting analysis.

= The performance of the total fund is also measured against the strategic benchmark, which is
comprised of the asset class benchmarks weighted by the strategic allocations, and against agreed
outperformance targets.

= The performance of the fund in each asset class is measured against the relevant benchmark. A
comparison against a universe of portfolios with similar mandates will also be made from time to
time.

7.2 Service Provider Monitoring

The Committee reviews from time to time the services provided by the investment adviser and other
service providers as necessary to ensure that the services provided remain appropriate for the Fund.

8. Environmental, Social and Governance and Exercise of Rights

The Committee expects the investment managers to take steps to ensure that environmental, social

and governance factors are adequately addressed in the selection, retention and realisation of
investments as far as such factors may affect investment performance.

BMO (formerly F&C) provides a responsible engagement overlay on the Fund’'s UK equity portfolios.
BMO enters into constructive discussions with companies on the Fund’s behalf to put to them the case

Page 16



for improved financial returns through better management of the negative impacts they might have on
the environment and society in general.

The Fund is also a member of the Local Authorities Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), which seeks to
combine like-minded bodies to promote the above issues. At present 64 Local Authorities are members
of this forum with a combined asset value of 75% of local government pension fund assets.

8.1 Myners Investment Principles

Details to the extent to which the Pensions Committee complies with the six Myners principles and the
extent to which management and investment arrangements at Shropshire comply (in accordance with
the existing CIPFA guidance), and where not, what action is proposed in order to comply are set out in
Appendix B.

9. Investment Manager and Adviser Fees

Investment management fees comprise an ad valorem or fixed base fee element and in some cases a
performance based element. The ad valorem fee is calculated as a percentage of assets under
management. Where applicable, the performance based element is calculated as a percentage of
outperformance. The assessment period ranges from one to three years depending on the investment
manager and the mandate. The exact details of the fee arrangements are specific to the investment
manager and are as agreed in the respective Investment Manager Agreements.

Page 17



Appendix A: Current Investment Managers

Fund assets are invested in portfolios managed by external investment managers shown in the table
below. They are benchmarked against the indicated indices. The table shows whether portfolios are
managed on a segregated or pooled basis, and their outperformance target. Based on expert advice,
investment managers may be replaced at any time and this list may not always be current.

This appendix shows the position at September 2015 and has been appended to the Statement of
Investment Principles for information only, and does not form part of the Statement.

Investment

Manager

Asset class

Benchmark

Target

Active portfolios

Unconstrained

1 0,
PIMCO Europe Ltd bonds 1 month Sterling LIBOR +4% p.a.
BlackRock rEETHIEEE 3 month USD LIBOR +4-6% p.a.
bonds
GAM LineonEE e 3 month Sterling LIBOR +3-5% p.a
bonds e
BMO Liability Driven Hedge Benchmark (based on FTSE Outperform
Investment (LDI) over 5 yrs Index Linked Gilt Index) the benchmark
- +2% p.a. over
WEITEENS et UK Equities FTSE All Share rolling 3 year
Management ;
periods

MFS Investment
Management

Investec Asset

Global Equities

Global Equities

MSCI World

MSCI All Country World NDR

+2% p.a. over
rolling 3 year
periods

+ 3-5% p.a.
over rolling 3

METEEETIES year periods
+ 2-3% p.a.
Harris Associates Global Equities MSCI World over3to5
years
Harbour Vest Private Equity Fund ; e o
Partners Limited of Funds Broad public equities index + 3-5% p.a.
Cilolor] [ G Infrastructure n/a RPI +5% p.a.
Management
. Composite of INREV VA Europe
ﬁ‘f\’/zggfsn PR Efgogﬁa” (inclUK)  |ndex, vintage 2005 — 2008 and IPD  RPI +4% p.a.
perty UK All Balanced Funds Index

Multi-Strategy . o
Brevan Howard Hedge Fund 3 month Sterling LIBOR +6.0% p.a.
BlackRock Ul e fRiselge 3 month Sterling LIBOR +5.0% p.a.

Funds

Page 18



Indexed (Passive ) Portfolios

Legal & General
Investment Global Equity
Management

FTSE Developed World — GBP Match
Currency Hedged benchmark

Page 19



Appendix B: Myners Principles Compliance Statement

Comply or
explain

Development

Principle needs

Comment/Examples

1

. Effective decision making

Administrating authorities
should ensure that:

decisions are taken by
persons or organisations
with the skills, knowledge,
advice and resources
necessary to make them
effectively and monitor
their implementation

Those persons or
organisations have
sufficient expertise to be
able to evaluate and
challenge the advice they
receive and manage
conflicts of interest

2. Clear Objectives

An overall investment
objective should be set out
for the fund that takes
account of the scheme’s
liabilities, the potential
impact on local tax payers,
the strength of the
covenant for non-local
authority employers and
the attitude to risk of both
the administrating authority
and scheme employers,
and these should be
clearly communicated to
advisors and investment
managers

Comply

Comply

Pensions Committee takes
decisions relating to setting
investment objectives and
strategic asset allocation,
appointment of investment
managers. Pensions
Committee members,
substitute members and
officers participate in an
annual training day, attend
educational seminary and
receive occasional papers
and presentations at
committee meetings. The
training requirements of new
Pensions Committee
members are addressed
and appropriate training
programmes made
available, with a formal
Training Programme being
submitted to the Committee
for consideration on an
annual basis. The Pension
Board provide assurance
and good governance
around the Pension
Committee and the process.

A Fund specific investment
objective is set to maintain a
funding level at, or close to
100% and within this, to
endeavour to maintain low
and stable employers
contribution rates. As set
out in the Funding Strategy
Statement, the actuary
takes account of a range of
factors on the Fund’s
liabilities in setting
contribution rates as part of
the valuation process.

Performance and risk
parameters are specified in
relation to relevant indices
and appropriate time
periods and are set out in
investment mandates.

Page 20



[$))

. Risk and liabilities

In setting and reviewing
their investment strategy
administrating authorities
should take account of the
form and structure of
liabilities.

These include the
implications for local tax
payers, the strength of the
covenant for participating
employers, the risk of their
default and longevity risk

. Performance assessment

Arrangements should be in
place for formal
measurement of
performance of the
investments, investment
managers and advisors

Administrating authorities
should also periodically
make a formal assessment
of their own effectiveness
as a decision-making body
and report on this to
scheme members

. Responsible ownership

Administrating authorities
should

Adopt or ensure their
investment managers
adopt, the Institutional
Shareholders’ Committee
Statement of Principles on
the responsibilities of
shareholders and agents

Include a statement of
their policy on responsible
ownership in the statement
of investment principles

Report periodically to
scheme members on the
discharge of such
responsibilities

. Transparency and reporting

Administrating authorities

Comply

Comply

Comply

Comply

Asset/Liability review is
carried out every three
years and the actuary takes
account of a range of
factors on the Fund'’s
liabilities as set out in the
Fund’s Funding Strategy
Statement which addresses
the issues of financial
assumptions, longevity and
strength of covenant. If
required, the actuarial
funding position can be
reported to the Pensions
Committee on a quarterly
basis, using information
provided by Aon Hewitt.

The Officers have an
independent performance
measurer in place. They
also receive regular updates
from Aon Hewitt regarding
managers and the Officers
meet regularly with their
managers and advisors to
review their performance.
The Fund has recently
assessed its effectiveness
as a decision-making body
and aims to spend more
time on strategic level and
asset allocation decisions
compared to meeting
managers going forwards.

The SIP includes a
statement on responsible
ownership.

An independent advisor is
appointed to engage with
companies on socially
responsible issues and
voting at company meetings
is effected through the
Fund’s investment
managers.

A range of documents are
published relating to the

Page 21



should

Act in a transparent
manner, communicating
with stakeholders on
issues relating to their
management of
investment, its governance
and risks, including
performance against
stated objectives

Provide regular

communication to scheme
members in the form they
consider most appropriate

Fund’s investment
management and
governance including the
Governance Compliance
Statement, Funding
Strategy Statement,
Statement of Investment
Principles, Communication
Policy Statement and
Annual report and accounts.
These documents are
available in full on the
Fund’s website and any
amendments are published.

Stakeholders are also
invited to attend the annual
meeting of the scheme.

Page 22



Agenda ltem 10

A ] Committee and Date ltem
@A@ S h ro p g h | rel Pensions Committee
SERE 27 November 2015 1 0
10.00am Public

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MONITORING

Responsible Officer Ed Roberts
e-mail: ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) 252078 Fax (01743) 255901

1. Summary

1.1 The report is to inform members of Corporate Governance and socially
responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 1st July 2015 to 30t
September 2015.

2. Recommendations
2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report, Manager

Voting Reports at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management
Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B.

REPORT
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunies Appraisal
3.1 Risk Management is part of the Pension Fund’s structured decision-making
process by ensuring that investment decisions are taken by those best

qualified to take them.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 The Fund’s Corporate Governance Policy enables it to influence the
environmental policies of the companies in which it invests.

3.4  There are no direct Equalities or Community consequences.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5. Background

5.1  The Shropshire County Pension Fund has been actively voting for over fifteen
years at the Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meetings of

the companies in which it invests. Voting is carried out by individual Fund
Managers on all equity portfolios.

Page 23


mailto:ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk

| Pensions Committee, 27 November 2015: Corporate Governance Monitoring

5.2 The Fund is also addressing its social responsibility through a strategy of
responsible engagement with companies. BMO Global Asset Management
provide this responsible engagement overlay on the Fund’s UK equities
portfolio.

6. Manager Voting Activity

6.1  Details of managers voting activity during the quarter relating to equity
portfolios are attached (Appendix A).

7. Responsible Engagement Activity

7.1 During the last quarter BMO Global Asset Management have continued to
actively engage with companies on the Fund’s behalf. An update on the
engagement activities for the quarter is attached at Appendix B in the REO
Activity report.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Corporate Governance Monitoring report, Pensions Committee 25 September 2015

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A. Manager Voting Activity Reports.
B. BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports.

Page 24




VOTING POLICY

maepie I

Asset Management

We introduced our own customised voting policy in Q1 2014, run in parallel with 1SS's policy. The
majority of areas in which our policy differs from that of 1SS are within the smaller company sector, in
which we are a leading participant, and relates to capital raising with pre-emptive sharcholder rights;

these are by their nature often associated with smaller companies. It is not inconceivable that we will

make exceptions and vote against our own policy: as with all our voting, we proceed on a case by case

basis.

We regard a smaller company as having a market capitalisation of £1.5bn or less.

Below are the specifics of the policy:

Agenda Type

1SS policy

Majedie Policy

Smaller Company Board Structure

Where Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)
are members of internal boards, or
where members of the board sit on
more than one internal committea, this
is regarded as being against best
practice, and therefore the
recommendation is to vote against
such proposals.

Give smaller companies greater
flexibility in the composition of
their boards for practical reasons,
given personnel limitations,
unless we take issue with one of
the board members.

Issuances with Pre-emptive Rights

Proposals of greater than 33% of
Issued Share Capital are against best
practice and therefore the
recommendation is to vote against.

As shareholders we will be given
the right to take up the issuance,
and therefore will not be diluted.
We therefore vote for such
proposals,

Issuances without Pre-emptive Rights

Proposals of greater than 10% of
Issued Share Capital are against best
practice and therefore the
recommendation is to vote against.

Vote in line with IS5 as such
issiances are potentially dilutive
for shareholders.

Political Contributions

Vote for.

Vote against. We like to maintain
an independent stance.

Majedie Asset Management Limited

Page 25

11




VOTING SUMMARY

Over the quarter, Majedie Asset Management voted at a total of 69 meetings on 824 resolutions.

Please see below a breakdown of the meetings and resolutions which pertain to the UK Equity Fund.

Number of meetings we voted at this quarter 54
Number of resolutions 617
Where we voted in line with Management 598 (96.9%)
Where we have not voted in line with Management 19 {3.1%)
Where we voted against I1S8's recommendation 35 (5.7%)

Scurce: Majedie, ISS Institutional Shareholder Services)

The table below is a breakdown of the number of resolutions where we have either voted against
Management or against the recommendation of ISS.

RESOLUTION AGAINST MANAGEMENT AGAINST 155
Routine/Business 17 17
Remuneration 2 7
Board election & related proposals 0 11
Capitalisation 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0
Reorg. and Mergers 0 0
Shareholder proposals 0 0
Total 19 35
Sources: Majedie, ISS (Institutional Shareholder Services)

Majedie Asset Management Limited 12

Page 26




VOTING BREAKDOWN

SECURITY MEETING MEETING MAJEDIE VOTE IN LINE
DATE TYPE WITH [SS
888 Holdings (1) 29 Sep 2015 EGM ?bstention on Resolutions 1, 2, 3, 4, No
Accsys Technologies 17 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
AGA Rangemaster 08 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Ambrian (2) 67 ul 2015 AGM Voted for all No
Anite 30 Jul 2015  EGM Voted for alf Yes
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena 15 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Blinkx 25 Aug 2015  AGM Voted for all Yes
blur Group {3) 11 Aug 2015 EGM Voted for all No
BT (4) 15 Juf 2015 AGM Against Resolution 21 No
Charles Stanley 31Jui 2015  AGM Voted for all Yes
Creston (5) 07 Sep 2015 AGM Against Resolution 13 No
Dairy Crest (6} 14Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 13 No
Darty (7) 10 Sep 2015 AGM Against Resolution 17 No
De La Rue (8) 23 Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 13 No
Eckoh 23 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Electrocomponents 23Jul 2015 AGM Votead for af} Yes
EMED Mining (%) 29 Jul 2015  AGM Voted for all No
FirstGroup (10) 16Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 18 No
Griffin Mining (11) 15 Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 8 No
Helical Bar 24 Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Hogg Robinson 24 Jul 2015  AGM Voted for all Yes
Home Retail {(12) 01Jui 2015  AGM Against Resolution 13 No
HomeServe 17 Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
ITM Power {13) 16 Sep 2015 AGM Against Resolution 1 No
KCOM 31 ul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Koninklijke KPN (14) 11 Sep 2015 EGM Abstention on Resolutions 1, 4 No
Marks and Spencer (15) 07 Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 23 No
National Grid 21 Jul 20015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Optimal Payments 28 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Petraceltic 24 Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Petroceltic {16} 07 Sep 2015 EGM Against Resolution 1 Yes
QinetiQ {17) 22 ul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 14 No
Quintain Estates (18) 20 Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all No
RPC 15 Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Ryanair (19) 24 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all No
Scapa (20) 21 Jui 2015 AGM Against Resolution 12 No
Shanks Group (21) 23Jul 2015 AGM Against Resolution 13 No
Sirius Real Estate (22) 18 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all No
Spark Ventures 06 Aug 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Spark Ventures 22 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Speedy Hire {23) 15Jul 2015  AGM Against Resolution 13 No
SSE 23Jul 2015 AGM Voted for all Yes
Tarsus 01 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes

Majedie Asset Management Limited

Page 27




SECURITY MEETING MEETING MAJEDIE VOTE IN LINE
DATE TYPE WITH ISS

Tate & Lyle (24) 29 0ul 2015 AGM ﬁg;}ﬁ;‘tti'g:sgfuﬁgf‘°1"gﬁ°“ ", No
Tesco 30 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Torotrak {25) 22 Jul 2015 EGM Against Resolution 5 Yes
Vectura 24 Sep 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Veactura (26} 24 Sep 2015 AGM Against Resolution 2 Yes
Vertu Motors 23Jul 2015 AGM Voted for ali Yes
Vodafone (27} 28 Jul 2015  AGM Against Resolution 20 No
WYG (28) 24 Sep 2015 AGM Voted for all No
ZincOx Resources 17 Aug 2015 EGM Voted for all Yes
Source : ISS {Institutional Shareholder Services)

i4

Majedie Asset Management Limited

Page 28




VOTING NOTES

)

2)

3)

10)
1)

888 Holdings: ISS recommended a vote against the long-term incentive plan as the maximum
individual award has been increased from 100% to 200% of basic salary with no explanation
provided, and the Remuneration Committee has granted the discretion to make awards above the
new limit in exceptional circumstances. After engaging with management, they assured us, there
was no change to the existing Asset and Equity Plan in place, this was just intended to roll it over
and that there are protective measures in place to ensure that directors are not overpaid. We note
that the 888 management have never exercised this in the past, however, we feel it is important that
they are able to use their discretion when incentivising employees.

Ambrian: Nicolas Rouveyre serves on both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Commitiee.
Whilst we would prefer to see directors serve on only one committee, we acknowledge that smaller
companies need to be permitted greater leeway in the composition of their boards, so we chose to

vote in favour.

Blur Group: ISS recommended a vote against the Financial Statements and Statutory Reports
because of ongoing deviations from best practice in the composition of their Board, After engaging
with the company, we have been assured by management that the there is a firm commitment to
separate the CEO and Chairman role by the interim reports in September. There are also plans to
appoint a new Audit Director and there is a new Non-Executive Director expected to join. We feel
management have made sizable steps to meeting best practice, we therefore voted for. We note
that if these changes are not implemented as promised, we would not support the resclution next
year.

BT: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.
Creston: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

Dairy Crest: on Resolution 2, we listened to the company's explanation in a recent meeting with
management when they explained that they were in the midst of a year of significant change for the
businesses. Therefore there was an exceptional rationale for the proposed awards. On Resolution
13, we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

Darty: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations,
De La Rue: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

EMED Mining: on Resolution 9, ISS recommend vote against awarding grant options to directors
and senior managers, owing to short vesting period. Management have finally brought the
company to the stage where it is poised for growth. We consider this award is merited under those
circumstances. We therefore voted in favour. On Resolution 10, 1SS recommend a vote against
awarding an equity grant, owing to shares being issued at a discount to the market price. We feel
that the amount is not excessive. We therefore voted in favour.

FirstGroup: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

Griffin Mining: On Resolutions 4, 5 and 7, Dal Brynelsen, Rupert Crowe and Adam Usdan serve on
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, Whilst we would prefer to see directors
serve on only one committee, we acknowledge that smaller companies need to be permitted
greater leeway in the composition of their boards, so we chose to vote in favour. On Resolution 8,
ISS recommended a vote against the elactronic distribution of company communications as the

Majedie Asset Management Limited 15

Page 29




resolution also proposes amending the bylaws of the company, permitting a shorter notice period
for shareholders and reducing the time that shareholders have to review materials and evaluate
their voting decision. We agreed and voted against.

12

g

Home Retail: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

13) ITM Power: ISS recommended a vote against the financial statements and statutory reports owing
to concerns surrounding the vesting period of awards granted to Executive Directors during the
year under review. We feel that concern over the immediate awards granted to executive directors
is warranted, as rigorous performance criteria are important in achieving the company's long term
goals. We therefore voted against. On Resolutions 2 to 4 ISS recommended a vote against the
election of Robert Pendlebury, Peter Hargreaves, Roger Putnam and Lord Roger as they serve on at
least the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, which is against best practice. Whilst
we would prefer to see directors serve on only one committee, we acknowledge that smaller
companies need to be permitted greater leeway in the composition of their boards. We feel each of
these directors makes a significant contribution to the strategic direction of the company and
brings useful industry knowledge to the board. We therefore voted in favour.

14) Koninklijke KPN: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.
15) Marks and Spencer: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.
16) Petroceltic: We voted against this shareholder proposal in fine with 1SS recommendation.
17) QinetiQ: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

18) Quintain Estates: 1SS recormmended we abstain from voting for William Rucker, who serves on both
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Whilst we would prefer to see
directors serve on only one committee, we acknowledge that smaller companies need to be
permitted greater leeway in the composition of their boards, so we chose to vote in favour.

19} Ryanair: On Resolution 2, 1SS recommended a vote against the Remuneration Report as it lacked
sufficient detail. We voted in favour of the Remuneration Report, in line with how we voted last year,
as we have no doubt that the company is acting in shareholders’ best interests. On Resolution 3, ISS
recommended a vote against the David Bonderman as he is currently the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and therefore responsible for the composition of the Board. While we like
to see independence on the Board, we are supportive of management and therefore voted in
favour. On Resolution 3h, 1SS recommended a vote against the re-election of James Osborne as he
is no longer independent due to his length of tenure and holding options. We feel that this
experience is invaluable and therefore voted to re-elect him on to the Board.

20) Scapa: we voted in line with Majedie palicy with regard to political donations.
21) Shanks Group: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

22} Sirius Real Estate: ISS recommended we vote against re-electing James Peggie, who serves on
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Whilst we would
prefer to see directors serve on only one committee, we acknowledge that smaller companies need
to be permitted greater leeway in the composition of their boards, so we chose to vote in favour.

Majedie Asset Maragement Limited 16

Page 30




23) Speedy Hire: 1SS recommended we vote against the authorisation of payment of the auditors,
KPMG, as non-audit fees paid exceed 100% of the audit fees, which is against best practice. We
chose to vote in favour as we Teel confident that KPMG were acting legitimately in carrying out the
audit. On Resolution 13, we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

24) Tate & Lyle: 1SS recommended vote against the Remuneration Report. The Remuneration
Committee has allowed CFO Nick Hampton to exchange a performance-related award granted in
connection with his recruitment for an award without performance requirements. The exchange of a
perforrance-related award for an award with no parformance conditions is poor practice. The Fund
Manager engaged with the Chairman and made his reservations clear. Although we understand
their rationale, we disagree with the lack of performance targets. We therefore voted against. On
Resolution 16, we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to palitical donations.

25) Torotrak: ISS recomimend vote against a grant of options to Adam Robson (CEQ), because in the

Loty

event of a change of control, he will be entitled to receive pro-rated bonus payments in respect of
both the six-month notice period and the subsequent six-month period. We agreed that this is not
in the shareholders' best interests and therefore voted against.

26) Vectura: 155 recommended a vote against the Remuneration Report as the salary increase awarded
to the CEO, Chris Blackwell, was above inflationary levels (7%). The increased salary was granted
after he announced his intention to leave the company meaning his termination payment will be

based on the increased salary. We therefore voted against the Remuneration Report.

P

27) Vodafone: we voted in line with Majedie policy with regard to political donations.

28) WYG: 1SS recommended a vote against approving the share incentive plan owing to the lack of
performance conditions and vesting period. Management engaged with the Fund Manager during
the process and he is supportive of the overall plan. We therefore voted in favour.

Majedie Asset Management Limited 17

Page 31




Page 32




"N
© Investec

Asset Management

Vote Summary Report
Reporting Period: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Institution Account(s): Investec Funds Series i - Global Dynamic

NXP Semiconductors NV

Meeting Date: 07/02/2015

Country: Netherlands

Meeting Type: Special Ticker: NXPI
Proposal Voting Vote
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec ISS Rec Policy Rec Instruction
Special Meeting Mgmt
1A Approve Acquisition of Freescale Through a Cash and Share Mgmt For For Refer For
Consideration
1B Approve Issuance of 12,500,000 Shares in Connection with the Mgmt For For Refer For
Acquisition under Item 1A
1C Grant Board Authority to Issue Share Based Remuneration Units Mgmt For For Refer For
Re: Freescale Acguisition
24 Elect Gregory L. Summe as Non-executive Director Mgmt For For For For
2B Elect Peter Smitham as Non-executive Director Mamt For For Fer For
Red Electrica Corporacion SA
Meeting Pate: 07/17/2015 Country: Spain
Meeting Type: Spedial Ticker: REE
Proposal Voting Voba
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec ISS Rec Policy Rec Instruction
1 Receive Report on Process of Splitting Positions of Chairman of Mgmt
the Board and Chief Executive Officer
2 Fix Number of Directors at 12 Mgmt For For For For

Page 33



Vote Summary Report
Reporting Period: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Institution Account(s): Investec Funds Series i - Global Dynamic

Red Electrica Corporacion SA

Proposal Voting Vote
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec ISS Rec Policy Rec Instruction
3 Elect Juzn Franciser Lasala Bernad as Director Mgmt For For For For
4 Autharize Board to Ratify and Exetute Approved Resolutions Mamt For For For For

Page 34



Vote Summary Report
Reporting Period: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015
Location(s): All Locations

Institution Account(s): 5984 -Shropshire County Pension Fund

Experian plc

HARRIS ASSOCIATES L.P.

Meeting Date: 07/22/2015

Country: United Kingdom

Primary Security 1D: G32655105

Record Date: 07/20/2015 Meeting Type: Annual Ticker: EXPN
Shares Voted: 204,700
Proposal Vote
Number  Proposat Text Proponent Mgmt Rec ISS Rec Instruction
1 Accept Financial Staternents and Statutory Mgmt For For For
Reports
2 Approve Remuneration Report Mgmt For Abstain For
3 Elect Lloyd Pitchford as Director Mgmt For For For
4 Elect Kerry Williams as Director Mgmt For For For
5 Re-elect Fabiola Arredondo as Director Mgmt For For For
6 Re-elect Jan Babiak as Director Mgmt For For For
7 Re-elect Brian Cassin as Director Momt For For For
8 Re-elect Roger Davis as Director Mamt For For For
9 Re-elect Deirdre Mahlan as Director Mgmt For For For
10 Re-elect Don Robert as Director Mgmt For For For
11 Re-elact George Rose as Director Mgmt For For For
12 Re-elect Judith Sprieser as Director Mgmt For For For
13 Re-etect Paul Walker as Director HMgmt For For For
14 Reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Mgmt For For For
Auditors
15 Authorise Board to Fix Remuneration of Mgmt For For For
Audgitors
16 Authorise Issue of Equity with Pre-emplive Mgmt For For for
Rights
17 Approve Performance Share Plan Mgmt For For For
18 Approve Co-Investment Plan Mgmt For For For
19 Approve Share Option Plan Mgmt For For For
20 Approve UK Tax-Qualified Sharesave Plan Mgmt For For For
2t Approve UK Tax-Quatified All-Emplayee Plan Mgmt For For For
22 Approve Free Share Plan Mgmt For For For
23 Authorise Issue of Equity without Pre- Mgmt For Fot' For
emplive Rights
24 Authorise Market Purchase of Crdinary Shares Mgmt For For For

Page 35




Vote Summary Report

Reporting Period: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Location(s): All Locations

institution Account(s): 5984 -Shropshire County Pension Fund

Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA

Meeting Date: 09/16/2015 Country: Switzerland Primary Security 1D: H25662182
Record Pate: Meating Type: Annua! Ticker: CFR

Shares Voted: 65,504

Proposal Vote
Number  Proposal Text Proponent Mgt Rec ISSRec Instruction
1 Accept Financial Statements and Statutory Momt For For For
Repoits
2 Approve Alocation of Income and Dividends Momt For For For

of CHF 1,60 per Registered A Share and of
CHF 0.16 per Bearer B Share

3 Approve Discharge of Board of Directars Mgmt For For For
4.1 Elect Johann Rupert as Director Mamt fFor Against For
4.2 Elect Jean-Bigise Eckert as Director Mgmt For Against For
43 Elect Bernard Fornas as Director Mgmt For For For
4.4 Elect Yves-Andre Istel as Director Mgmt For Against For
4.5 Elect Richard Lepeu as Director Mgmt For For For
4.6 Elect Ruggero Magnoni as Director Hamt For Against For
4.7 Efect Josua Matherbe as Director Mgmt For Against For
4.8 Elect Simon Murray as Director Mgmt For Against For
4.9 Elect Alain Dominique Perrin as Director bgmt For Against For
4.10 Efect Guillaume Pictet as Director Mamt For For For
4.11 Elect Norbert Platt as Director Mgmt For Against For
4.12 Elect Alan Quasha as Director Mgmt For Against For
413 Efect Maria Ramos as Director Mamt For For For
4.14 Elect Lord Renwick of Clifton as Director Mamt For Against For
4.15 Elect Jan Rupert as Director Mgmt For Against For
416 Elect Gary Saage as Director Mymt For Against For
4.17 Elect Juergen Schrempp as Director Mamt For Against for
4.18 Elect The Duke of Wellington as Director Mgmt For Against For
5.1 Appoint Lord Renwick of Clifton as Member Mamt For Against For
of the Compensation Committee
5.2 Appoint Yves-Andre Tstel as Member of the Momt For Against For
Compensation Committee
53 Appoint The Duke of Wellington as Member Mgmt For Against For
of the Compensation Committee

Page 36



Vote Summary Report
Reporting Period: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015
Lacation(s): All Locations

Institution Account(s): 5984 -Shropshire County Pension Fund

Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA

Proposal Vote
Number  Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec ISS Rec Instruction
6 Ratify PricewaterhouseCoopers SA as Auditors Mgmt For For For
7 Designate Francois Demierve Morand as Mgmkt For For For
Independent Proxy
8 Amend Articles Re; Ordinance Against Mgmt For Against For
Excessive Remuneration at Listed Companies
9.1 Approve Maximum Remuneration of Board of Mgmt For For For
Directors in the Amount of CHF 10.3 Million
9.2 Approve Maximum Fixed Remuneration of Mgmt For Against For
Executive Committes in the Amount of CHF
14 Miflion
93 Approve Variable Remuneration of Executive Mgmt For For For
Committee In the Amount of CHF 23.7 Million
10 Transact Other Business (Voting) Mgmt For Against Against
Diageo plc
Meeting Date: 09/23/2015 Country: United Kingdom Primary Security ID: G42089113
Record Date: 09/21/2015 Meeting Type: Annual Ticker: DGE
Shares Voted: 186,730
Proposal Vote
Number  Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec IS5 Rec Instruction
1 Accept Financial Statements and Statutory Mamt For For For
Reports
2 Approve Remuneration Report Mgmt For For For
3 Approve Final Dividend Mgmt For For For
4 Re-elect Peggy Bruzelius a5 Director Mgmt For For For
5 Re-elect Lord Davies of Abersoch as Director Mgmt For For For
6 Re-elect Ho KwonPing as Director Mgmt For For For
7 Re-elect Betsy Holden as Director Mgmt For Far For
8 Re-elect Dr Franz Humer as Director Mgmt For For For
9 Re-elect Delrdre Mahlan as Director Magmt For For For
10 Re-elact Nicola Mendelsohn as Director Mgmt For For For
11 Re-gloct Ivan Menezes as Director Mgmt For For for
12 Re-elect Philip Scoft as Director Mamt Fer For For
13 Re-elect Alan Stewart as Director Mgmt For For For

Page 37




Vote Summary Report

Reporting Perlod: 07/01/2015 to £9/30/2015

Location(s): All Locations

Institution Account(s): 5984 -Shropshire County Pension Fund

Diageo pic
Proposal Vote
Number  Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec 155 Rec Instruction
14 Appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Mgmt For For For
Auditors
15 Authorise Board to Fix Remunetation of Mgmt For for For
Auditors
16 Autharise Issua of Equity with Pre-emptive Mgmt For For For
Rights
17 Authorise Issue of Equity without Pre- Mamt For For For
emptive Rights
18 Authorise Market Purchase of Qsrdinary Shares Mgmt For For For
19 Authorise EU Political Donations and HMgmt For For For
Expenditure

Page 38




&
ral

Le
G

*3)ISgam INo U0 a|qe|ieA. aq AjHoys [|im Jodas sigy

0} jul] ¥ "suonn|os apiacid pue 1do} sy uo abebus 0} ‘sn x| 'SI0}sAUI JO B0 aU) pue doeds ABlaus
pue Asjjod 8y} ul aoe|d Bupie; ase Jey} sabueyd 1saBBIq aU} JO A0S BUINO SN "UCHISUR) ABoua

pue abueyo ajew|d Jo sjoedwl aU} PISSNISIP AM ‘S[EjUaWEPUNS ‘@oaid JyBnou) WIS 1s31e| au) U
ebueyg sjewi|) — sjejuawepund

"spiepueys Budodas |eqo|B jo asn au} pue Burodal

paelfajul ‘Ajeuaiew Buipn|ou; UOISSILLGNS JNO Ul SNO0J JO SEBIR UIBW XIS 210M aJay ] ‘saluedwo
ut Buipodar 953 uo asuepinB punole smaiA Jno Buinb ISHH au} o) asucdsal B papiuIgns Spn
983 uo uoieyNsuod (ISHH) ebueyoxg ¥203g Buoy Buoy

'syBu Bunoa s|qnop se yons saido) ueadoing pasancd

0S[2 INq MM 3y} ul ssanoeld soueusanob ajelodios uodn panuso uonejuasald ay] "Aje) Ul uosess
Axo1d 610z au} Bunanoo awoy ul 90URIBUOY [eNUUY U0S3B109S) ay) 18 Jaquial [3ued & sem WIOT
duy Afey

"9oUBWaA0S) sjelodio) Bulpue)siapun

uo aAlysod Usaq sey %I2gpas) Sy "SINSS| PUB SPUBJ) JUSI3J SSNOSIP SE [|aM SB 20UBWISAOD)
jeJodiod Jo 21doj By} UO SSRSNY SY) 9)EONPS 0} SI UoHERIUBsaId By} Jo asodind ayl “eoUBIBACD
ajesodio Uo WnJoZ [enuuy isnuL Ja)sep auy 0} pajuasald 197 ‘Buluuns 1esk pucoas sy} Jod
wniod [enuuy ISnij Jajsey

"JuaLISaAUl 3|gIsuodsal Jo a1niny

Uo UOISSNISIp [2A91-03D 'YS4 dsaueder ‘abuey) sjewnD Buipnisur $31do) 0 AlSUBA B UO SJUSAD
papuaje pue [aued e uo xe} sjeJodiod uo 3iom Jno pajuasald ap, ‘papusie saebalsp [eqolb 008
a1aym Jaquisidas Ul 30U (1Y d) JUBLSAAU| S[qISUCCSaY JO $3|dIoULd [BNUUE 3Y) PAPUSTIE SpL
uUOpPUOT Ul 9oUBIBJUCY JUBUNSAAU] BjqIsucdsoy Jo sajdidung

*SIY} PUNOJE $9$$329NS puB
S9J0B)$q0 BUY) ‘ssa001d JUSLIISAL] SU} OlUl HST 2)eIB3)UI 0} MOY SOUSIPNE BU) YIM PAIBYS 9M IaUm
uonesBaiul 583 30 o1do} ay) U Uo}seg U] 9UBIBIU0D NDD] Bl e isijsued B SEM 2IE[D ‘UORIPPE U]

‘sjuedioned Jex/ew pue sajuedwod alow AuBw J98W 0} pue S$3098 JaRag uieb o} 197

9lqeus |w pue ajyoid BumoiB uno uo ping [Iw uoiBas auy ul 3ouasald JoH "JeaA B JO WNWIUIW © 1o}
2210 obedtyD 1No 0} PIIEV0}R) U] SBY 'BOUBLLY UHON SOUBLIBA0D) a)eiodiod) 1o pesH ‘uked 21810
a2ualauod (NI MHomeN 2ouBLIDA0S aje10di00) [BUOBLIBIU| PUB S Y] Ul @oUasald

‘710z Ul

JuswabBeuely Jossy J0 s1elg Buisry OF Japun Op 9y} Jo U0 SE SMBN [2IUBUL] AQ POSIUB09a] SEM pUB
diysiapey) v40 aui spioy osie sRsuuear py juswabeue)y JUsLLISAAU| SSN I8 ISABUY JOIUSS By SB
Ajua021 150U ‘20UBWBN0S S1BI0dI0D) Ul 32URHAdXD JO S1BaA Z| JOAO SBY IPUUBS[ "WES) SOUBLISACS
Sjelodiod |97 B4} 0} SMaIpUY SsuUES| Jo Juaujuiodde ay) asunouue o) paseald ale apn

1aBeueyy asueulonog ajelodion mau 4o Juawjuioddy

juawdojaAnag pue SMap 3saje]

juawabeugy JuaulssAl| [eIaURS) B [eBaT :aoinog

(%16) Jod

(%:2°0) Sonsg| [Cuaiueljaul =

(%4°4) Jotiopyaacaxe | m

(24,0) pajejes JoroaxyEI-puy =

(%04} 890U[SNG JGWIO 7 aulney ‘Ypny m
(3,L'0) PIUTUIGACD [0I0U0D B

(%1 L1) oungany s eydeg

(9%0°12) uoReaunWoy =

(v%ese) pajaol Jopaljgm

(%6) ulesqysu|edy

oido] Aq sajop ulelsqyasuleby suolsiaaqg bunop

‘uoibau siy} U1 saAce Ino ue Bunodas
paue}s aney pue siew Buibiows Jolew ayj Ul 9J0A OS[E 3\ "SUOHUS]SAE PaSILUILILL SABY puB
‘qyloed eisy pue ueder ‘eouswy ypop ‘adoing :Buipnjou sieyew padojaasp Jofew | Ul 3104 W19

-abedgam Jno Uo punoy 9q 0S|e UBd 3say L
"SjeMIew assueder pue UeoUBWY YUON SU} JaA0D 0} 21nso(osip Buijoa oignd ino papusixa saey apA

"2USgaM JNO U0 PSSOIOSIP BJB $3J0A MM I "deudoidde arsym sjusuodwios |je ajeibajul pue
$anss] [BIoUBUI4 pUE (HST) SOUBLIGA0S ‘[B1D0S '[BIUSWUOIIAUT Jo abuel e uo abebua app ‘saucbales
Bunoa utew ol dn papIAIp aJe Saljsiie)s BuijoA ‘sanss) 80UBLISACE o) 812.ISUOLUSP 0] JSPJO U]

JOOUBUISACL-3]B10dI00/5a1[Iqedes/ua/n/Wod WID| MMMW/-dRY

(14d) Juawsanu] ajqisucdsay jo sa|diould NM 2y o) Aojeubis e aie pue apos) diysplemals

N 2y Ui o jes sadiound ay) yum Ajdwoo apn -aon0eld 1saq ajowold pue ainjie) ajelodico jo sysu
20NpaJ 0} SI0JSBAUI JBLI0 UM AjSAlRIOGE||0D pue Ajjoaulp Yiog saluedwed yiim abebus osie apa "siybu
Bunoa s1ay) Buisiozexs Ag SjUS10 N0 JO J|BYSq UO 2NjBA JOP|oYaJeYS 10910id pue asIWiXew o) We SpA

2o13081d pue Adsijod

JUBSWIISDAU| 9]gISUOASaY R 92UBUIDAOL) djelodio) JnQ

Page 39



"abueyo ajewns Bunebiiw spiemo yoeosdde snoyquie aiow e axe) o} spasu Auedwos ay) ey}
aA3lIlaq am ‘sasel asnoyuaalb Jo Japiwa jsabile| seljensny sI 9V 20uls "siebie) uoonpal Ausuajul
suoissiws 1o s1ebie) uononpai sUCISSIWS aAREUEND ARY Jou ssop AuedLuod ayl ‘050z AqQ sueid
Jamod paJy-|eod (| BulloissILILLIodap sk yons ‘abueys sjewo SSaIPPE 0} SJUBLLJILULLCD SLWoS
Buiney apdsaq spoye uoneBiiw abueys sjewn|o sejelodiooul Jey) jPpoL ssauisng e dojaaap o}
pdeoq ay) aJinbas 0} uonusucd s,Auedwod suy; puawWe o} uonn[esal Japjoyaseys ay) papoddns apn
elRsSNY samn uge'0Lany :deo'n ABisuz 1oV

"BOIOY UINOS Ul 9)0A 1s930.d Big B SEM SIYL

‘Junowie padinbas ay) anoge 9%g°¢ 1SNl INOABY UI S3J2US 10 %G°60 Yim ‘Axold yiewpue| e u passed
Jebiaw a3yl %0t 01 %l wou Apuesyiubis paseasoul Auedwos ayp Ul 3xelS SajBlUR ay) pue dnolg
Bunswes se siapjoyaleys aroge nd a1am Ajiwe} Buipunoy ay} jo siseuaiul sy paieadde )i ‘peajsy|
'SaJeys Jo uoin|ip pue uonenjeAlapun Jueoyubls sy} yjoq Joj alesuadiuod pinom sy} aAs1sq

Jou pip am Ing ‘salbisuAs Jnoge Bulg pinom [eap sy} jey) panbie Auedwod ay] 'ssauisng Buipen

S31 Ul seoud Apowwod Bul|je) pue 10108 LORONASUCD 3Y) Ul Uo[adLiod 0} aNp SUOIIPUOD JIWOU0IS
ybnoy Buioey sem |0 Bunswes -ou| sauisnpu| 18U Aq [eap Jaaoaye) ay) jsuebe pajoA apa

B30} yinog [euisnpu| U8 8ZMEM [deD 1329 Bunsweg
Judedg- BISY

‘SneA JapjoyaJteys uual-buo| Gunowoud

YIM BUI| U1 Jou pue %001 Je anissaibbe oo} sem ones noked puapialp pasodold Jiay) paasiaq am
Se pJeog 2y} 0] SIC10alIp SPISIN0 3y} Jo juswiuiodde ay} Jsulebe pajoa apA "20UBUY Ul 92usLadXs
pue abpapmouy aaisualxa Jiayy yBnoays Jubisur a(gen|ea apiaoid pinom sicjoallp 2pISIN0 MU JO
juswjulodde sy} 1ey) paaalag Asu) pue 'siapljoyaleys s) 0} Ino pied Jusem yaiym yses Jo sasnjdins
Jofew s Auedwod 3y} Inoge sem UI3IU0D ISy "pJeoq oy} o} (Jjesuuy Buipniour) sI0j0a.ip apISINo
Jnoj jo suoneulwou ay} pajsanbal sauedwod ajeaud s IWeNEINA INEIUSOA ‘ISIAIOR JSP|oYaIeys
uedep [euisnpy| uqL'z6x :ded’iy P¥1 00 214309|3 epoiny

ueder

‘ SN Y} Ul S10A

1sej01d yBiy e AjpAne(al st yoiym jesodoud s,Auedwiod aup poddns jou pip SIAPIOUSIBYS JO 9% /€ JBU)
Buiuesw ‘siapjoyaieys 1o %Eg WOl SIJ0A SBA panlaoal Ajuo |esodoid DT 9y "SIequiaw pIeoq
Joj Aoljod uoIsS300NS 3] JO SSBUISNGO. BU} PUB PJEOg 8y} U0 Jamod 4O SOUR|Eg BUj} INOGE SUISOUOD
pey os|2 apA ey Juspuadspul ue aaey sAem(e pinom Auedwos ay) ainsus o) [esodoid pauoddns
Auolew e payonas Ajsnonaid pey Auedwos ayj se |esodosd siu Jsurede pajoa am Auedwos sy ypm
Buibebua Joyy ‘03D pUE UBLLIBYD JO $8|01 Y} BuIquwod 0} poddns Bupise pa|ed Sem DT Uy
aouBUl4

SN pue Bupjueg

uqgegls ded'iy BIoLIAWY 10 yueg

sn

‘ssauisng ay} u Buipjoyaseys jo yoe| pue ainual Buinias

Buol 03 anp a1em asuspuadapul Jiay} J0BYE JBY} SUOSESI U} UM SI010aJIp Juspuadapul-ucu

10 Jaquinu e jsuteBe sjon 0} papioap pue Auedwod sy} Yim pabebus ap ‘saulapinb souewanob
Sjeiodiod Jspun soueleq Juapuadapul Jo BUSIID By} AJSHES Jou $30p pJeog sAuedwod sy

VS juolsyary
alsioueuly eubedwon

adoing

puejdzIms Spoo9 Anxn  ugg’Lp4HD ded'iy

swabeuely Juswisanu| [esauas) % |eba :@oinog

*s01doy} @2urWIaACE 1940 se [|lam

SE UOljeJ3unwWal $SNISIP 0] 39IWUWO0D UOIBIAUNWSY 3} JO UBULIBYD puB uBuLieyD s Auedwiod
ayl yum Jaw Apuanbasgns apy 1sulebe aoA o4 b€ 2 panisoal uonnjosal sy ‘sbexoed uonelsunwal
|e10} s uawabeuew Jo 24nsojosip Jood 0} anp podsy uohelaunway syl jsuiebe pajoa apa

dnoug

ugql'L3 :ded iy iendes sjeipawieiu]
‘uoisoddo ybiy e aydsap pieme

ay1 yum peaye juam Ay} Aum alo|dxa 0 Auedwoo ayy yum pabebus Ajusnbasqns apy jsuiebe
310A 9%,9°0F © POAIS0AI UOIN|OSAI Y| "SI9P|OYSIBYS JOYI0 pue sn woy) uopisoddo jueoyubis
aydsap O30 9y} 0] pJEME UOIJOBSUE.Y] JJO-3U0 aU) Uiim peaye ob 0} uoisioap auy} pue sjuawied
snuog Bulpunouns Aoualedsuel) Jo ¥oB| 2} 0} anp Yoday uonelaunway auy) Jsuiebe pajoa apa

N $199npold pood wgeed :ded’iy 3sa1p fujeg

‘SIapjoyaleys Juapuadapur Ag uonos|a

-3l sIY Jsulebe 9)J0A 9ZZ B PaAISoal uBLLIBYD 3yl "Auedwog 35| 4 B WoJj 109dxa pinom noA

Saul| uonedUNWWOo? [Bnsn au} Ag pauoddns aq o} sjie} Auedwo sy} paaosdwl sey siapjoyaleys
UIm UOIEDIUNLULIOD 3Iym PUB JBajoun suiewal ([3s ABajels uonisinboe sy "pasojosip

ug9q Jjou sey yoym ureyo Alddns siayy Buipunolns Aoussedsuel) pasealoul pajsanbal osje

9M 'pieog aU) uo abueyp jo aoed mojs pue Auedwon ay) 1e asuewsAob au) Jo sussouod Buinunuod
1no ssaudxe 0} moL B Ul SIESA OM] JO) UBULLIBYD PJEOg 8U) JO UoiDae-al sy} jsuiebe pajoa Wi
|euoneuISlU|

MO  S90MaS [elouRUIY

>in Ifejoy ugqe'y :ded’iy wauqg spodg
wopbury papun
suoisioaqg Buijop Asy
LRI
Buibiawsg |30 BlsY ueder B3Oy YHoN odoing MM
E R g EE
pojejad Jopagm “’ 05
uopEiauUNWay |

amangs jepdesa L oot
uogesjuebiony /abioponcoyel = W

S0INSRAW JoscaNEl-iuym

+ 05l
SEOUISNG JORO P SURNOH =
2UBLIBAOY [CIOUIOm

S0 Bugop = | 908

$ONSS| [BUALLOAUT =

agom - 0se

oido] Aq saj0p
NIVLSEY pue 1SNIVOYV JO umopyealg Jeuoibay

JuswisaAu] d|qisuodsay @ 9OUBUIDAOL) d)jelodion InQ

Page 40



owabeuely JuaWSaAU] [BISUIS) ¥ [eba :aaunog

spun4 xapu| Aynb3 — sjaxuep Buibiaws pue ouloed eisy ‘ueder 'eauswy YuopN ‘adoing ‘YN DiNd 241 104 IN0 PaLUED US3q SBY Jey) BUijoA aU) S|Iglap 9|ge) aA0ge AU L

Liy ¥0¢ > (5 (0)4 61 cal e pajoA seiuedwod Jo Jaquiny
GLL oLl oL Z (o) 6 8z (no3) sbuneep [eieues Aeuipioenxs
¥re el 92 /i e 0l orL (wov) sBuiesiy |eisues [enuuy
G105 Sell ove 88 9g¢g 961 beve suopnjosel jo Jagquinu [ejol
l gee 69¥L V4 6l e ¥s oL (0} SyE 6v rL 62 Sove S3J0A [B30L

(44 cl 4 S € Y0 - 48

Senss! |e1og - 4

1 L WSWUONAUTIYESH — dS

1S
= H € L 4 Auedwos pue oc_SmwM:_mmm
ol cl l o= SoUBUIBA0S) jelodio) — 4S s|esodoid

Jepjoyaieys

Sbu BuoA - ds
ainonys [eyde) - 4S

] ¥ L uogeRuUNWY - 45
2z L 8 l 9 4 Z pelejas J0103lIg — 4S8
S2INSEILU JOAOMBI-NUY — 4S
SaNss! [B100S
81 4 98 £ 9 14 ZL Z € Z sz uonesiuebioalabiawyianoaie |
CoL 4 8 201 poje|al JONOINE}-UY
ssauisng
9%EL ¥e 296 L i I 14 4 8¢ 0L oS < 0L9 Auedwon pue suRnoy PPNy o
2ouewaA0D [BJBURS) juswebeuely
syybu Bunoa
616 AL 0se (0] 4 22 e € S i S GGt aimpnys [epded
Ley or 09 9 2€ € A £e 6 zl Gl 602 uonessunway
o861 601 viE 9 0L Sl (44 (0] 4 ¥ L¥E Sl 09 g 866 paje(al Joyoalg
= == = = = = = = = = = =
< 2 o = 2 x <= 2 2 < Z x =< Z e = 2 o
G| O Lo Nt ROk ) [BSRN] PPrs Bl st 11120, 4 Dot | Lo et b D0 i bl o
e o b b o L = o L b o v 0 5] = o o = SL0Z/60/0€ PUB SLOZ/L0/L0 Ueemieg
< < < < < < < << < < < <
|ezoL s1ayel Buibiaws 21108 BISY ueder BOLeWY YUON adoing Mn

uoibay pue oido) Aq Arewwng BuioA W91

Jusw)saAu] agisuodsay R 9OUBUIBAOL) djelodio) InQ

Page 41



Juawsbeuey JUBWISIAU| [BJaUsS) B [eBa :8ainog

aonoeld 1saq yim sl ul sioupne Buias Buoj sy pabueyo Auedwos sy
‘uonippe | “1exiew au) Aq panjea Ajipeas 210w S| ABaJelIS SSBUISNG B|qRUIRZISNS JISY) 8INsUa O} SI jnsal payabie) syl JUSIUOD PUB SINONIS
Buipodal pajelbajul Jiay) se |[om se ‘saioljod aInsojosip HST Jlayl malasl [[im Auedwos sy} ‘BuilaaLll INo JO JNSal 8 Sy "SIOJS3AUI OF SIY)

31eoIuUNWWOod AjpAlcaYa 0} @o: uo SM3IA JNO Emzoﬁom_m Auedwod ay] -souewuopad [erouBUY SjqRUIRISNS JBU0LS Ojul 3jB|SUBL) PINGD "syBU BUNOA puB “ysU pue ypne ‘ABajens

SIY} MOY puejsiapun o} pue ‘suonelado pue ABajelis ‘uoisia s Auedwod ay) ojul 983 eiBajul Aayl moy ssnasip o) AuedwoD aul 1aW apA pue souewlopad AUuedwos ‘sanssi soueLaA0h ajelodico
[el00S pue [ejuawuoiaug 0afgns |esauab Buipniour saido} s1an00 AloBajed a0UBUIRA0S) [BIDUSD),,

s3 N seoniag oddng we 6983 :dea' CYSEEIENT] ‘Bunjeaw e Ul anss! SUO UBY) SJ0W SSNISIP

U210 am Se pajunod aignop a9 Aew sbuiissw sjou aseald.
‘030 2y} 4o} souwads uawaalbe uoneulwe] anoldwl

0} Aueduwos ayj Joj Wool ||1s st asay} Ing 1sed ay) Ul spew usaq aney sabueya uoneIBUNWAI SANISOd ds Buiaq Jara $9|0) JIBYD/0ZD 6¥ s SOHBHIPN0DIBRMED
auy o pooyial] ayl uonsanb ol sBulg yoiym OZD si Yim aoe(d ) Joeljuod usalBlans ue sey Auediuod syl SUISOUOD UOHEISUNLUA) Zl 19BIaW/IBA0BE |
pue ‘diysiapes| pseoq Buipsebas pieog ayl jo J0j02u1Q JUspuadapu| pea aul 0} 2%0ds puB SI0}SSAUI JSYI0 OM] UM PIBIOGE(0D S/
UOIRIBUNWSI PUE SIMONnLS pieog 1nalans ¢ SInpnis [eyded
9 sn S[eannsdBLLIRY ugpp$ :deg’iy UOSSaMIN ¥l uonelauniay
"aInjny au} Ul anjen Jaployaleys Bunesso Joy 8|qeiunoooe pIeoq sy} Pioy pue Jao [equsjod ay) 0} JUnoosip 0z ainjoniis pleog
[EHUEISQNS 3y} 2onpal djsy 0} SWaouoD SouBLIaA0E Uo BJUSBUAS Lim aBe6US 0} aNURUOD aM 'JSASMOH "UORDESUEI] SU} WOl Keme paxem vz sonss| sakojdws/ei0s
Apuanbasqns sey ojuesuoly "elUaBUAS o ojuesUO Ag JanoaME] 3|soy [eiusiod By) uo Allenpialpul swes) JuswsBeuety Ylog Jsw ap : :
1Br03Ye pslang gl AljigeuRISNSAUSWIUOIAUT
) PUBLRZIMS/SN anynolby  uqoedHOMALPSdED W ejuabuigojuesuoy
W 16 L4 gL
‘JUBA|2J PUE 1SNqOJ sulewal sisAleue siy} ainsua o) Auedwon sy yim abebua 03 anunuoa Jim app s1oelosd ymedh usious 0L
-[endes Auew ul 1saaul 03 pue oljofiod ay uo joeduw ayy sjebriw o) saunyoddo yim ppom saa1Bap Z B ul Jusisal sulewas oljouod 4 9 S 3

s Auedwod sy} Jey) SEM UOISN[OUOD S| "SIUDAD HOOUS JSuleBe pajsa) Usaqg 0SB SABY UDIYM SOLIBUSDS IN0) paquosep Auedwos sy ‘ainjny
uoqJea mo| e "8l plom saaibap z e o} uonisuey e jo suonesldw) oyopuod [enusjod aul Buipnour sBueys a)eLwi 10 ansst ay) uo yseoidde
Buiuued oueusos au) o} Ul Jybisul ue spircid 0] Sem WIE Ay "SISAlEUY OlloJHOd aBuey) Sjewl|) B $I0}saAul 0} pajuasald AuedwoD ay |

Aingeureisng :pefang
3 N Buuniy uqy'ess e’y uoy|iig dHe
"AlJUD SUOIEPUE]S B SB JO [BI0D) YIIM UCRBUIGLUOD Ul JAUISUM ‘PIEMIO)
Buiob pieog 1abuons e 104 ysnd 0} Auedwod ayy yum abebua o) Buinupuoeo ale apn Loz Aea ul Auedwod ay) Bunes| aq [im 049

SH0IGPET By} Jey} paounouue usaq Ausnbasgns sey 31 "dnoib pauiquod sy} Joj sjuswabuele asueuianob au) pue (mamney Auoyiny
sl pue uoniadwoy ay) 0} uoneas ul Apenoied) uons|dwos punole sysi 2y} ‘[eep sy} Joj sjeuonel oi6atens ay) Buipiebal 100

£S91do} 4 pue 5s3
sBujesl jo JaqLuuny J0 alow Jo auo Buusacd sbunasy

pue saxoiqpeT yieq ywm pabebus apn “ABajens mau e se [lam se ‘dnolD (2100 syl yim Jabiaw pasodoid B pesunouue Auedwos auy ‘Anp SOUBWIOASD [BJ0UDD - O]
U| "§10Z 15| [Udy UO JSAO %00} 0T MSU B PUB SSBUISNG 9] 9ABI| 0} 3Jom OZD PUB UBLLIBYD BU} JBY) paSUNOUUR SBM Ji JBSA aU) Ul Jaieg JoBlapSORIGNEL - Dl
ainjonns pieoq pue Jabis oslgng aumpanas jeyden =

= AN Buiwes uqy3 :deg’iy sayolqpeT e L
oimanis pleog - om

*3INSO[ISIP pasealoul 103 paysnd pue JUBWILIOJIAUS UoQIeD sanss) ooAgidwo/ej00g - S8

AAO| B U1 SSBUISNG 3U} 104 SHSH pue saunuoddo syl ybnoay) Jusm pue abueyo ajewo jo ansst sy} passnasip am ‘Anse "sseooud Apspio AIKRURSNS AUOWUOIAUT - T m
ue sl a2y} 1ey} ainsua o} juswabeuew Jo Buiuue|d uoissEOINS JO NSS! DY) PASIEL aM ‘SICULIBYHINS 'S SU} Ul JUSWSHRS 2y} Bulmolio)
pue juswuo.iaua 9oud |10 mo| B Ul ABjel)s pue Auedwwoo au) jo soueuLopad sy} SSNASIP 0} UBULIBYD PIBOY Y UM pjay sem Bunsaw v

ABajens pue juswuoAUT ‘BInjonuls pieog :1oalqng
493 N Se9 B 110 ugg'L93 e’y d8

soido] (jeroueurd)d pue (sueuiano9)s (je100g)s ‘(jejuswuosiaug)g uo sjuawebebug Auedwog Aay sa1ouanbail4 @ soidoj juswabebug

jJuswsaAU| a|qisuodsay R 92UBUIDA0L) djelodion InQ

VN - = - NS = - L - - - - - -~

Page 42



48 MFs

Vote Summary Report

Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Location(s): Massachusetts Financial Services

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Global Equity Fund

Time Warner Cable Inc.

Meeting Date: 07/01/2015 Country: USA Primary Security ID: 887321207 Meeting ID: 978809
Record Date: 05/07/2015 Meeting Type: Annual Ticker: TWC
Proposal Vote
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec Instruction

la  Elect Director Carole Black Mgmt For For

1b  Elect Director Thomas H. Castro Magmt For For

lc  Elect Director David C. Chang Mgmt For For

1d  Elect Director James E. Copeland, Jr. Mgmt For For

le  Elect Director Peter R. Haje Mgmt For For

If Elect Director Donna A. James Mgmt For For

1g Elect Director Don Logan Mgmt For For

1h  Elect Director Robert D. Marcus Mgmt For For

1i Elect Director N.J. Nicholas, Jr. Mgmt For For

1j Elect Director Wayne H. Pace Mgmt For For

1k Elect Director Edward D. Shitley Mgmt For For

1l Elect Director John E. Sununu Mgmt For For

2 Ratify Emst & Young LLP as Auditors Mgmt For For

3 Advisory Vote to Ratify Named Executive Mgmt For Against

Officers' Compensation

4 Report on Lobbying Payments and Policy SH Against For

5 Pro-rata Vesting of Equity Awards SH Against Against
Burberry Group plc
Meeting Date: 07/16/2015 Country: United Kingdom Primary Security ID: G1700D105 Meeting ID: 985871
Record Date: 07/14/2015 Meeting Type: Annual Ticker: BRBY
Proposal Vote
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec Instruction

1 Accept Financial Statements and Statutory Mgmt For For

Reports
2 Approve Remuneration Report Mgmt For For
Page 1 of 6

Page 43




Vote Summary Report
Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015
Location(s): Massachusetts Financial Services

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Global Equity Fund

Burberry Group plc

Proposal

Number Proposal Text

o o® W o o s W

i0
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

Microchip Technology Incorporated

Meeting Date: 08/14/2015
Record Date: 06/18/2015

Approve Final bividend

Re-elect Sir John Peace as Director
Elect Fablola Arredondo as Director
Re-elect Philip Bowman as Director
Re-elect Tan Carter as Director
Re-elect Jeremy Darroch as Director
Re-elect Stephanie George as Director
Re-elect Matthew Key as Director
Elect Caralyn McCall as Director
Re-elect David Tyler as Director
Re-elect Christopher Bailey as Director
Re-elect Carol Fairweather as Director
Re-elect John Smith as Director

Reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
Auditors

Authorise the Audit Committes to Fix
Remuneration of Auditors

Authorise FU Political Donations and
Expenditure

Authorise Tssug of Equity with Pre-emptive
Rights

Authorise Issue of Equity without Pre-
emptive Rights

Propenent
Mamt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Magmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mamt
Mamt
Mgmt
Momt

Mgmt

Mgmt

Mgmt

Mgmt

Authorise Market Purchase of Ordinary Shares Mgmt

Authorise the Company to Call EGM with
Two Weeks' Notice

Adopt New Articles of Association

Country: USA

Mamt

Mgmt

Meeting Type: Annual

Mgmt Rec
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
Far
For
For
for
For

For
For
For
For
For

For

For

For

Primary Security ID: 595017104
Ticker: MCHP

Page 1 of 6

Page 44

Vote
Instruction

For
For
For
For
For
For
Far
For
For
For
For
For
For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

Meeting ID: 991709




Vote Summary Report

Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Location(s): Massachusetts Financial Services

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Global Equity Fund

Microchip Technology Incorporated

Proposal
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec
1.1  Elect Director Steve Sanghi Mgmt For
1.2 Elect Director Matthew W. Chapman Mgmt For
1.3 Efect Director L.B. Day Mgmt For
1.4  Elect Director Esther L. Johnson Mgmt Far
1.5 Elect Director Wade F, Meyercord Mgmt For
2 Approve Conversion of Securities Mgmt For
3 Ratify Emst & Young LLP as Auditors Mgmt For
4 Advisory Vote to Ratify Named Executive Magmt For

Officers’ Compensation

Dassault Systemes

Meeting Date: 09/04/2015 Country: France Primary Security ID: F2457H472
Record Date: 09/01/2015 Meeting Type: Special Ticker: DSY
Proposat
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec
Extraordinary Business Mamt
1 Authorize up to 2 Percent of Issued Capital  Mgmt For
for Use In Restricted Stock Plans
2 Autherize Capital Issuances for Use in Mgmt For
Employee Stock Purchase Plans
3 Amend Article 2 of Bylaws Re: Corporate Mgmt For
Purpose
4 Authorize Filing of Required Mgmt For

Documents/Other Formalities

Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA

Meeting Date: 09/16/2015 Country: Switzerland Primary Security ID: H25662182
Record Date: Meeting Type: Annual Ticker: CFR
Page 1 of 6

Page 45

Vate
Instruction

For
For
For
For
For
For
For

For

Meeting ID: 993796

Vote
Instruction

Against
For
For

For

Meeting ID: 936774




Vote Summary Report
Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015
Location(s): Massachusetts Financial Services

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Global Equity Fund

Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA

Proposal

Number Proposal Text

1

4.1
4.2
43
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9
4,19
4.11
4.12
4,13
4.14
4.15
4.16
4,17
4.18
5.1

5.2

5.3

Accept Financial Statements and Statutory
Reports
Approve Allocation of Income and Dividends

of CHF 1.60 per Registered A Share and of
CHF 0.16 per Bearer B Share

Approve Discharge of Board of Directors
Elect Johann Rupert as Director

Elect Jean-Blalse Eckert as Director
Eect Bernard Fornas as Director

Elect Yves-Andre Istel as Director

Elect Richard Lepeu as Director

Elect Ruggero Magnoni as Director
Elect Josua Malherbe as Director

Etect Simen Murray as Director

Efect Alain Dominique Perrin as Director
Elect Guillaume Pictet as Director

Elect Norbert Piatt as Director

Elect Alan Quasha as Director

Elect Marta Ramos as Director

Elect Lord Renwick of Clifton as Director
Elect Jan Rupert as Director

Elect Gary Saage as Director

Elect Juergen Schrempp as Director
Elect The Duke of Wellington as Director

Appoint Lord Renwick of Clifton as Member
of the Compensation Committee

Appoint Yves-Andre Istel as Member of the
Compensation Committee

Appoint The Buke of Wellington as Member
of the Compensation Committee

Proponent

Mgmt

Mgmt

Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mamt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mamt
Mgmt
Mamt
Mgmt
Magmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt
Mgmt

Mgmt

Mgmt

Ratify PricewaterhouseCoopers SA as Auditors Mgmt

Mgmt Rec

For

For

For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
Far
For
For

For
For

For

For

Page 1 of 6

Page 46

Vote
Instruction

For

For

For

Against
Against
Against
For

Against
Against
Against
For

Against
For

Against
For

For

Against
Against
Against
Against
Against
Against

For

Against

For




Vote Summary Report

Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Location(s): Massachuselts Financial Services

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Global Equity Fund

Compagnie Financiere Richemont SA

Proposal
Number Proposal Text Proponent
7 Designate Francois Demierre Morand as Mgmt
Independent Proxy
8 Amend Articles Re: Qrdinance Against Mgmt

Excessive Remuneration at Listed Companies

9.1 Approve Maximum Remuneration of Board of Mgmt
Directors in the Amount of CHF 10.3 Million

9.2  Approve Maximum Fixed Remuneration of Mgmt

Executive Committee in the Amount of CHF
14 Million

9.3  Approve Variable Remuneration of Executive Mgmt
Committee in the Amount of CHF 23.7 Million

10 Transact Other Business (Voting) Mgmt

Time Warner Cable Inc.

Meeting Date: 09/21/2015 Country: USA
Record Date: 07/28/2015 Meeting Type: Spedal
Proposal
Number Proposal Text Praponent
1 Approve Merger Agreement Mgmt
2 Advisory Vote on Golden Parachutes Mgmt

Diageo pic

Meeting Date; 09/23/2015 Country: United Kingdom
Record Date: 09/21/2015 Meeting Type: Annual
Proposal

Number Proposal Text Proponent

1 Accept Financial Statements and Statutory Mgmt

Reports
2 Approve Remuneration Report Mgmt
3 Approve Final Dividend Mgmt
4 Re-elect Peggy Bruzelius as Director Mgmt

Mgmt Rec

For
For
For

For

For

For

Primary Security ID: 887321207
Ticker: TWC

Mgmt Rec

For

For

Primary Security ID: G42089113
Ticker: DGE

Mgmt Rec

For

For
For

For

Page 1 of 6

Page 47

Vote
Instruction
For

For

For

Against

For

Against

Meeting ID: 998119

Vote
Instrection

For

Against

Meeting ID: 994850

Vote
Instruction

For

For
For

For




Vote Summary Report

Date range covered: 07/01/2015 to 09/30/2015

Location{s): Massachusetts Financial Setvices

Institution Account(s): MFS Investment Fund - Glebal Equity Fund

Diageo plc

Proposal Vote
Number Proposal Text Proponent Mgmt Rec Instruction
5 Re-elect Lord Davies of Abersoch as Director  Mgmt For For
6 Re-elect Ho KwonPing as Director Mgmt For For
7 Re-elect Betsy Holden as Director Mgmt For For
8 Re-elect Dr Franz Humer as Director Mgmt For For
9 Re-elect Deirdre Mahlan as Director Mamt For For
10  Re-elect Nicota Mendelsohn as Director Mgmt For For
11 Re-elect Ivan Menezes as Director Mgmt For For
12 Re-elect Philip Scolt as Director Mamt For For
13 Re-elect Alan Stewart as Director Mgmt For For
14 Appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Mgmt For For
Auditors
13 Authorise Board to Fix Remuneration of Mgmt For For
Auditors
16 Authorise Issue of Equity with Pre-emptive  Mgmt For For
Rights
17  Authorise Issue of Equity without Pre- Mgmt For For
emptive Rights
18 Authorise Market Purchase of Ordinary Shares Mgmt For For
19 Authorise EU Political Donations and Mgmt For Far
Expenditure
Page 1 of &

Page 48




Responsible Ownership Activity Report For professional investors only

Shropshire County Council
Q3 2015

The purpose of the reo® (responsible engagement overlay)® service is to engage with companies held in
portfolios with a view to promoting the adoption of better environmental, social and governance (ESG)
practices. The reo® approach focuses on enhancing long-term investment performance by making
companies more commercially successful through safer, cleaner, and more accountable operations that
are better positioned to deal with ESG risks and opportunities. Through a combination of constructive
dialogue and active share voting, ree® works to drive behavioural change with companies, and records
successful outcomes as ‘milestones’ - changes in corporate policies or behaviour following intervention.

Companies engaged this quarter

Companies engaged 46 Milestones achieved by issue
Milestones achieved 13 Environmental Standards R
Countries covered 1 Business Ethics [

Human Rights [N
Labour Standards [N

Public Health

Corporate Governance [N

Social and Environmental
Governance 0

5 10
Companies engaged by country Companies engaged by issue =~
M United Kingdom 46 ’:1 M Environmental Standards 23
‘Yh M Business Ethics 15
e I Human Rights 3
i 11 Labour Standards 3
1 ! Public Health 1
Ny M Corporate Governance 2
g ‘l I3 sodial and Environmental
Govermance 3

BMO 9 Global Asset Management

* reo" Is currently applied to £66bn ($103.7billion / €93billion) of assets as at 30th june 20155 Companies m, ge been engaged on more than one issue. *** This report has been compiled using
data supplied by a third-party electronic voting platfo ‘rl:)aﬁ]7 e 1




Shropshire County Council reo® Report

Company Engagement and Your Fund

Hame

Acal PLC

Anglo American

Antofagasta

Associated British Foods
Barclays

BG Group

8P

British American Tobacco
Burberry Group ple

Centrica Pl

Clipper Logistics Plc

Compass Group

Dixons Carphene PLC

Drax Group

Eurasian Natural Resources Corp ([NRC)
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD)
Experian Plc

Fiat Chrysler Automobiles NV
Gas Mafural

Greggs

Halma

) Seinsbury

Juplter US Smaller Companies PLC
Llayds Banking Graup
Majestic Wine

Marks & Spencer

Marks & Spencer Plc

National Grid

Next plc

Phaoto-Me International
Premier 0il Plc

Randgold Resources Ltd
Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC
Rotark

Royal Bank of Scotland Group
Royal Dutch Shell

Shire Plc

Sporls Direct International

SSE Plc

Priority Company

Country
United Kingdom

E United Kingdom | v

United Kingdom I
| United Kingdom | v
 United Kingdom v
| United Kingdom v
| United Kingdom v
| United Kingdom v
United Kingdom

‘ United Kingdom

SN IS N SN IS R IS 8 <o Engagement

. United Kingdorn
| United Kingdom
United Xingdom
| United Kingdom
United Kingdom
i United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
United Kingdom

| United Kingdom

Sl S RS N BN N BN S S S

| United Kingdom
i United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
United Kingdom
| United Kingdom
. United Kingdom
i United Kingdom ‘
' United Kingdom
| United Kingdom ‘

United Kingdom v

RN ENE SNBSS N AN N AN S AS

' United Kingdom
| United Kingdom

| United Kingdom 1

1 S

' United Kingdom

| United Kingdom

bl MR

. United Kingdom

@

Milestone

In this raport
Environmental
Standards
Business

Ethics

Rights
Labour

N ES
Human

23
g &

888

S

W IR S

&
B

Standards

&

%

%

%
%
%

%

- Page 50

3rd Quarter 2015

=
2

Corporate
Governance
Soclal and
Environmantal

Public

Health
|
]




shropshire County Council reo® Report 3rd Quarter 2015

Company Engagement and Your Fund

It
1
|
|

-y
&
ol
B
%

@
5 E 2 ‘;'i Eﬁ g £ 1B ‘é g
SEEILR N NIETRIE
Namo Courtry £ 5 £ 3 |E4 iz 5% 35 33 §5 8%
standard Chartered Plc | United Kingdom : v v v j @ & 5]
sthree pic United Kingdom HRIEYY v % i
Supergroup Pic ‘ United Kingdam v %
Tesca Plc | United Kingdom v v L7
Transprt for London (TfL) iUnited Kingdom j v v I @
Tullow oil iUni!ed Kingdom v @ 5
Vedanta Resources | United Kingdom v v v @ E & %W ] (34
Wesfarmers ' United Kingdem v v Yo
Vi Smith , United Kingdom i v 1 %
WM Marrison Supermarkets ' United Kingdom v %
WPP Group Plc \ United Kingdom | v v il

‘ e —0F — Page~51f _— R U



Responsible Investment Solutions

For professional investors only

reo® Viewpoint - Public

August 2015

Matthias Beer, Associate Director; Juan Salazar, Associate Director; Kajetan Czyz, Analyst, Governance and Sustainable Investment (GSI)

| - reo - clients in 2015.

This research provides overview and analysis of our engagement activities on the theme of “stranded assets”, A series of detailed
confidential reports on the oil and gas, coal and the utility sectors have been published ta our responsible engagement overlay service

Stranded Assets - Mitigating investment risk
posed by climate change

@& Political movement on climate change, and advances in alternative energy technologies, are
turning the transition to a lower-carbon future from theory into reality. This is presenting a key
challenge to ossrl fuel busmesses and investors in these companies.

(Q\

&2 A core part of the response is investor engagement ‘which aims at pressing investee companies in carbon

(‘\

and utility sectors.

|nten5|ve sectors to address the risks to their business strategy and to be transpatent to stakeholders,

Our GSI team has engaged atmost 100 companies in 24 countrtes across the ofl and gas, mining

There is a major energy transition taking place, the effects of
which will impact investors and companies globally for the
foreseeable future. Drivers include:

« Leaders of the G7 leading industrial nations agreeing in June to
cut greenhouse gases with the objective of ending the use of
fossil fuels by the end of this century;

» Renewable sources accounting for more than 40% of new
global electricity generating capacity';

» China, the world’s biggest carbon emitter, committing to
peaking its climate warming gas emissions by 2030 and;

+ United Nations leading negotiations on a global agreement on
mitigating climate change which could be adopted in Paris in
December,

The result of all this is that the dominance of fossil fuels - the
engine of global growth since the Industrial Revolution - is under
threat. This transformation will not happen overnight but we
consider the evolving dynamics of the energy system to be a
structural, macroeconomic trend. This will have implications for

the future growth and profitability of companies dependent on
fossil fuel extraction and use. There will be winners and losers
from this change, with companies that are able to make their
business models more robust to a wide range of future energy
scenarios more likely to finish in the winning camp.

The’stranded assets’ challenge

In recent years, the dialogue between investors and companies
concerning climate change has focused increasingly around the so-
called concept of “stranded assets”. This is based on studies which
have argued that under certain scenarios where carbon emissions
will be restricted, such as for example the establishment of a
robust and legally-binding global climate change deal, there will
be a limited amount of carbon that could be emitted in to the
atmosphere (also known as the “carbon budget”).

Analysis? has shown that 60-80% of the known reserves of
publicly listed companies which extract coal, oil and gas are
unburnable and would have to remain in the ground if global
warming is to be limited to two degrees centigrade. Even if

' Frankfurt School and United Nation Environment Programme analysis “Global Trends in Rencwable Energy Investment 2014”
2Carbon Tracker Initiative's 2013 analysis “Unburnable carbon 2013: Wasted capital and stranded assets”.

BMO e Global Asset Management

Continued

Page 52




policy falls short of the two degrees goal, rapid technological
changes could lead to the demand for fossil fuels (oil and coal
in particular) declining sooner than expected. These forces
put companies’ long-term projects at risk of not realising their
projected value - i.e. fossll fuel assets may become “stranded”.

The systemic risk this poses to economies and markets has
been seen as sufficiently serious by the Bank of England to
incorporate it into their core economic research programme and,
more recently, for the G20 nations to request the international
Financial Stability Board to convene an enquiry on the subject.
The question increasingly being raised to investors is: as the
risks become more apparent, could failing to take any account of
climate risk be seen as a breach of fiduciary duty?

Responding to the challenge through company
engagement

There are many ways in which investors can he more proactive
in their consideration of climate risk, but one of the most
widely-used has been engagement, with the aim of challenging
investee companies on their climate risk preparedness.

Over the past two years, we have been at the forefront of
raising concerns around potential asset stranding with a wide
range of executives and boards within the oil and gas, mining
and electric utility sectors, We are now seeing that the concepts
of stranded assets and a limited carbon budget have begun to
resonate within these industries - and increasingly at board level
- in ways that previous discussions on climate change did not.

Much of our activity occurred in the context of collaborative
investor initiatives, where we took a lead role in the dialogue
with many companies. We engaged a total of 95 companies

- 58 in oil and gas, 15 in mining and 22 utilities, including 46
meetings. In addition to targeting large-cap companies such as
Exxon, Royal Dutch Shell, BP, Anglo American and Glencore,
we also reached out to emerging market and mid-cap oil and
gas companies like Pemex and Husky.

Our main engagement objectives are:

= Risk management: To encourage companies to stress-test and
disclose the range of possible future energy scenarios used for
their strategy planning.

» Transparency and Commitment: To provide greater disclosure
on carbon risks embedded in their assets and to set clearer
targets for mitigating these risks by reducing exposure to high-
cost, high-carbon projects.

+ Board oversight: To strengthen board expertise on climate
change economics and improve oversight to ensure that
business models are resilient to rapid energy transition
pathways.

s Political advocacy: To ensure that lobbying activities are
consistent with the company’s stated climate change policies
and to support publicly policy mechanisms, such as carbon
pricing, that are designed to drive an orderly transition toward
a lower carbon economy.

Industry response

0il and Gas: The sector has until recently been highly inward-
looking, struggling to face up to the potential speed of change
in the energy system. The concept of stranded assets is now
slowly starting to resonate, with boards and CEOs beginning

to take notice. Investor pressure has injected momentum

into the debate. Highly publicised shareholder resolutions on
climate change, namely those at Shell and BP's recent annual
shareholder meetings which received 98% support, have been
particularly instrumental, Some companies are now beginning
to take more seriously the need for enhanced risk management
frameworks to examine the economic impact of climate change
on their business.

Compared to a few years ago, there are also indications that
more corporate resources are being dedicated to look into the
climate change challenge. By developing a better capability to
anticipate these impacts, leading companies should be able

to divert investments away from assets that face a higher risk
of economic stranding. There are some encouraging steps in
terms of public repositioning and instances of reviews to risk
management assumptions, but it is too early to assess the
impact these will have on companies’ long-term strategies and
investment decisions. Despite a sharp fall in crude prices in the
past year, we still often encounter “business-as-usual”, sceptical
industry attitudes that revolve around bullish commadity price
and demand forecasts. These underpin the management
rationale for continued investments in high-cost assets which
require a high oil price to break even.

In how companies present themselves to stakeholders and
policymakers, a more visible rift has opened up lately between
some of the European and US majors. While the Europeans are
becoming increasingly eager to be seen as part of the solution
to climate change, the largest US oil companies continue to
resist any strengthening of climate policy.

Coal mining: In the past couple of years, weakening demand
and a glut in the supply of thermal coal, used to make electricity,
have had a dramatic downward impact on prices and mine asset
valuations. At the same time, they are significantly exposed to
risks from policy moves to curb glabal emissions as thermal coal
is highly carbon intensive.

Companies in the industry have responded differently to

these risks. The largest diversified miners do not see the risks
materialising in a way that would make their coal assets become
stranded. Their assessment hinges on the diversification of their
portfolios, the positioning of most of their assets at the low end
of the cost curve, and that pay-back periods for most present
and future investments in coal are relatively short, We consider
these views valid, yet continue to press companies to improve
disclosures on their assumptions.

Pure coal players, on the other hand, remain particularly
vulnerable, especially those based in the U.S. as shale oil and
gas production increases. Companies based in, or exporting to,
emerging markets are less vulnerable. Similar to the export-
oriented diversified miners, they are betting on coal remaining

(  Continued \

\\ A’

Page 53



the fuel of choice to continue spurring economic growth in these
markets in the next two to three decades. However the change
in the energy strategy in China - the world’s largest consumer -
shows the risks to this assumption.

Electric utilities: European eleclricity generating companies face

their own challenges. These are in the form of overcapacity of power
supply, Increasing penetration of renewables (now 20% of total power
capacity) and an energy policy reform which is aiming to accommodate
intermittent renewables within the existing power market,

“Utilities must adapt to this new paradigm or risk being
squeezed out.”
Moody's

Utilities have responded to these challenges in a number of
ways. Firstly, there has been a consolidation of assets with
unprofitable plants being mothballed, closed or sold - GDF Suez,
Centrica and EDP are good examples. A second approach
involves moving towards more regulated markets e.g.
transmission and distribution or in developing countries. The
third response is developing energy services and trying to get
closer to the end client. This is specifically a response to a
growing number of competitars from outside the sector (e.g.
Tesla, Google, Apple) offering storage, smart grid and smart
home solutions which in the medium term can cause a structural
reduction in demand for electricity.

Conclusion and next steps

Amongst leading companies, more time and resources are being
dedicated to analyse the implications of the climate change
challenge. This is, in part, a direct result of investor engagement,

However, with a small number of exceptions, analysis is not yet
feeding through into action. Companies in the carbon-intensive
industries are still falling short of pro-actively developing a
systematic approach to address structural risks which an accelerated
shift toward lower carbon energy would entail. Many of the measures
being introduced remain relatively short-term fixes - such as dealing
with a fall in commodity prices - and genuine long-term robust
planning to tackle climate change risk is still rarely forthcoming.

Climate change is no longer a risk to investments that can be
considered purely long-term and arising far away in the future,
Already, coal miners and electric utilities are increasingly facing
the urgent need to develop alternative business models to
stay relevant and profitable. As momentum builds towards a
global deal in Paris later this year, we will continue to press
management and board directors to closely examine the
economic impact of climate change on their business.

BMO 9 Global Asset Management

Engagement vs. Divestment?

The “stranded assets” concept has fuelled a broad debate
among investors and spurned a variety of responses ranging
from outright sector exclusion® to selective divestments of
the most carbon intensive companies*. Alongside these
moves, the debate has also led to a significant increase in
engagement activity by investors pressing companies to
develop slralegies for transition to a low-carbon economy®.

Much of the debate on stranded assels risks in the fossil fuel
sector has centered on the question to what extent investors
should engage companies on this issue more actively or take
a divestment approach, Selective divestment approaches
appear to be getting more traction with mainstream investors,
as reflected in the recent announcements by the Norwegian
sovereign wealth fund and the French insurer Axa, committing
to reduce their exposure to coal industry investments. We
would argue that engagement and divestment approaches are
not exclusive to each other when considering a responsible
investment approach on climate change.

In pushing companies for greater justification of riskier investments
within their portfolios - be that in high-cost il projects, thermal
coal, or carbon-intensive ulility assets - our engagement aims to
achieve disclosure enhancements that ultimately should enable
investors to distinguish better between companies’ exposure

1o, and ability to manage, enerqy transition risks. Our dialogue
thus not only tries to improve company approaches to deal with
stranded assets risks, but it also aims at facilitating more informed
dedisions around how organisations wish to remain invested in the
fossil fuel sector in the coming years.

Engagement and divestment therefore, rather than
representing two disconnected and opposing strategies, can
be considered as complementary approaches. Both aim at
addressing the same issue - pushing companies and helping
investors to anticipate and prepare for the pace of change
ahead and to allocate capital in ways that enable a rapid and
orderly transition toward a lower carbon economy.

1See e.g. hitp://350.0rg/
1See e.g. the recent decision of the Norwegian Government Pension Fund to not
divest outright but opt instead for active ownership and selective exclusion on a

case-by-case basis. hitps:/fwww.regjeringen.no/en/aktuelt/Report-from-the-Ex-

perl-Group-an-investments-in-coal-and-petroleum-companiest/id2342780/
SFor an overview, see reo Viewpoint “Global warming miligalion gaining
momenium”, October 2014

This note reflects voting and engagement undertaken on behalf of clients of our reo® (responsible engagement overlay) engagement service, and on holdings in funds managed
by BMO Global Asset Management within the Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) region. There are certaln exceptions: separate governance polidies currently apply to assets

managed by LGM Investments, Pyrford International, Thames River (Thames River Capital LLP and Thames River Multi-Capital LLP), F&C Portugal, Gestao de Patriménios, 5.A. and BMO
Real Estate Partners. In some cases dients may not mandate us to vote or engage within a segregated account. F&€, the F&C logo, REO and the rea’ logo are registered trademarks of

F&C Asset Management plc.

© 2015 BMO Global Asset Management. Al rights reserved. BMO Global Asset Man. Pagemenl Isa uadlng name of F&C Management Limited, which is authorised and regulated by the

age 5

Finandal Conduct Authority. CM05857 07/15.




Agenda Iltem 11

g = . Committee and date Ilte
% ?4 ShrOpShll"e Pensions Committee
= Council
27 November 2015 11
10.00am Public

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
Email:  Debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252192 Fax: 01743 255901

1. Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with monitoring information on the
performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report.
REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management

Performance is considered and monitored to ensure regulatory
timescales and key performance indicators are adhered to.
Administration risks are identified and managed and are reported to
committee on an annual basis.

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal
The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 Environmental Appraisal
There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change
consequence of this report.

3.4 Financial Implications
Managing team performance and working with other Administering
Authorities ensures costs to scheme employers for Scheme
Administration are reduced. However, it must be noted that the
introduction of the 2014 LGPS and the increased governance being
introduced by the Public Services Pension Act 2013 will increase the
resources required by the administration team. Reconciling the Funds
Guaranteed Minimum Pension Liabilities with HMRC will have a direct
cost for the Fund but if this is not undertaken the Fund risks taking on

Page 55



Pensions Committee; 27 November 2015: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

financial liabilities it didn’t need to and having its data called into
question by the Fund Actuary.

Performance and Team Update

The team’s output and performance level to the end of October 2015 is
attached at Appendix A.

For September and October the procedures completed each month
increased to over 1000 which has contributed to the outstanding
procedures reducing. This is very encouraging and demonstrates that
the work being done to target backlog areas together with the fact the
vacant posts have been recruited to in now having a positive effect on
reducing the outstanding work. It is hoped that if this can be sustained
the back log will be greatly reduced going into the Valuation.

The middleware service called I-Connect (supplied by I-connect Ltd)
has now gone live across 11 employers who use Telford & Wrekin
Council as their payroll provider. Telford & Wrekin’s main payroll and 2
other externals are due to go live in November 2015.

The Systems team are still working closely with Shropshire Council and
iConnect to ensure their payrolls go live before March 2016 to ensure a
smooth year end process in readiness for the Valuation.

The transfer of Funds for those Pensioners and Deferred Beneficiaries
who were part of the Ministry of Justice transfer to Greater Manchester
Pension is proceeding. The transfer of records has already been
undertaken and the Funds are to be transferred on 1 December.

Help Desk Statistics

The following chart shows the number of queries received through the
helpline number.

Aug 2015 Sept 2015 Oct 2015
844 1031 854

Telephone calls
received
Queries dealt
with by
helpdesk at first
point of contact
%*

Users visiting "
the Website 1917 256

* Where queries have not been dealt with by helpdesk, this will usually
mean that the calls have been picked up by the rest of the team
outside of the helpdesk.

**This figure is low due to a problem with the configuration of google analytics by the
Web Team for this month only.

90.88% 91.85% 89.11%

1984

Page 56




Pensions Committee; 27 November 2015: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

6. GMP Reconciliation

6.1 Work is continuing on this project. It is hoped that the Fund accountant
can help on this project.

6.2 Costs to outsource this work have been obtained and a report on the
preferred way forward will be brought to committee at the next meeting.

7. HMT Consultation on Exit Payments Cap

7.1 HM Treasury has published the results of their consultation on a
proposed public sector exit payment cap on redundancy payoffs. They
have confirmed their intent to limit exit payments in the Public sector to
£95K. The cap is proposed to include the value of the employer cost
associated with early access to an unreduced pension for those
employees in the Scheme and over age 55.

7.2 This proposal conflicts with the current LGPS regulations so will require
a change in legislation. Quite how this would be incorporated into the
LGPS regulations remains to be seen.

8. Communications

8.1 An Employers meeting was held on 20 October 2015 in the Council
Chamber at the Shirehall and 38 employers were represented. The
agenda on the day was as follows:

o Update from Scheme Administrator — James Walton

o Valuation 2016 — John Livesey, Mercers

o End of contracting out from 2016/ Outsourcing and the LGPS —
Debbie Sharp, Pensions Administration Manager

. AVCs and the LGPS — Mike Johnstone, The Prudential

o Pensions Taxation and the Summer Budget - Helen Tomkins,
Pensions Operations Lead

o CARE, Final Pay and Data Quality — Cheryl Morrell, Pensions
System and Support Lead

o Employer Discretion policies - Rebecca Purfit, Communications
Officer

The meeting was filmed and all presentations will be available online in
the coming weeks, for employers who couldn’t attend the meeting, to
watch. A feedback form was given out on the day and some of the
feedback received is below:

o All employers who attended the meeting rated it as good, very
good or excellent.
o All employers who completed the feedback form agreed that

they knew more about the LGPS after attending the meeting.

Page 57




Pensions Committee; 27 November 2015: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

8.2

8.3

8.4

o All employers who attended the meeting said they would attend
the next employers meeting.
o The most popular sessions were: Ending of Contracting Out,

CARE Final pay and Data Quality and Employers Discretions
and Policies in the LGPS.

It is interesting to note that following the employers meeting views to
the website including the employer area and the employer meeting
increased dramatically.

Annual Benefit Statements 2016 - Work has already started on the
production of Annual Benefit Statements for 2016. As reported in
September 2015 the Fund is moving to online statements from summer
2016 for its active members. A project group has been set up involving
the key officers, focusing on areas such as specification, data testing,
system requirements and implementation. Currently the Fund are
looking at ways of efficiently promoting the use of Member Self Service
during 2016(MSS), via posters in the workplace etc, in the run up to
only producing the Statements on -line. Collaboration with other Funds
undertaking the same communications exercise may be considered to
ensure the costs associated with this exercise are good value.

A newsletter for all active members is currently in draft, with a view to
being issued towards the end of the year. This newsletter will ensure
the regulatory requirements of the Occupational and Personal Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 are met.

Statements of policy about exercise of discretionary functions -
Under regulation 60. — (1) of the LGPS 2013 regulations employers are
required to formulate, publish and keep under review a policy
statement in relation to the exercise of a number of discretions under
the LGPS rules. Reminders have been issued to Scheme Employers to
ensure they are aware that since the change in regulations from the 1
April 2014 they must make a new policy which now includes the
discretions introduced as a result of the Scheme changes. Until
recently the Fund had only managed to obtain policies from a relatively
small number of employers therefore a template was purchased from
Pentag Ltd for employers, without a policy, to use. Since the template
has been shared with employers together with the training provided at
the employers meeting, the Fund has doubled the amount of policies it
now holds. The Fund has also been contacted by a further 5 employers
who have confirmed they are currently drafting or awaiting approval of
their policy. Each employer policy is being published on the Fund’s
website. In the coming months further reminders will be sent to those
employers who have not yet made a discretions policy.

Page 58




Pensions Committee; 27 November 2015: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Pensions Committee Meeting 25 September 2015 Pensions Administration Report

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
NA

Local Member
NA

Appendices
Appendix A — Performance Monitoring

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1O abed

APPENDIX A

Task Statistics

3500

3000

+@— Tasks Which Became Due

2500

-+~ Procedures Outstanding at end of
Month

2000

Outstanding Excluding Checking

Number of Tasks

¥~ Number of Procedures Processed On
Time

1500

1000

+@- Procedures Completed

Procedures Processed On Time In
Office P384

500

41— Total Processed In Office P384

+—=— Procedures Terminated




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

A ' Committee and Date ltem
55: S h ro p S h | re Pensions Committee
i i/ -
: Council 12
27 November 2015
10.00am Public
NEW POLICY - BREACHES POLICY
Responsible Officer James Walton
e-mail: James.walton@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: (01743) Fax (01743)
255011 252184

1. Summary

1.1 The report outlines the requirement for all individuals with a role in the
LGPS (including members of the Committee, members of the Local
Pension Board and officers) have a duty to report breaches of law
when they have reasonable cause to believe that a breach has
occurred. There should be no reliance placed on waiting for others to
report breaches

The Pensions Regulator’'s Code of Practice, which became official
guidance for the LGPS on 1st April 2015, includes practical guidance
and expected standards (i.e. best practice) in relation to reporting
breaches. This policy and procedure has been designed to comply with
the guidance and ensure that Shropshire County Pension Fund follows
best practice in this area.
2. Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to approve, with or without comment, the

Breaches Policy at Appendix A.

REPORT
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk management is considered by Committee in making decisions
under the governance arrangements outlined.

3.2  The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3  There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change
consequences of this proposal.

Page 63


mailto:James.walton@shrops

Pensions Committee, 27 November 2015: NEW POLICY — BREACHES POLICY

3.4

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

The policy will be issued to employers and published on the Scheme’s
website.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Compliance with The Pension Regulators guidance does reduce the
likelihood of being fined for non-compliance or wrong doing.

Background

All individuals with a role in the LGPS have a duty to report breaches of

Law when they have reasonable cause to believe that:

e A legal duty relevant to the administration of the scheme has not been, or
is not being, complied with; and

e The failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to the
Regulator.

This includes officers of the administering authority (Shropshire

Council), the Pensions Committee, Shropshire local pension board (LPB)
members, scheme employers, professional advisers (e.g. actuary, fund

managers) as well as any other person involved in advising the administering

authority in relation to the scheme.

A person can be subject to a civil penalty if he or she fails to comply
with this requirement without a reasonable excuse. The duty to report
breaches overrides any other duties the individuals listed above may
have. However the duty to report does not override ‘legal privilege’.
This means that, generally, communications between a professional
legal adviser and their client, or a person representing their client, in
connection with legal advice being given to the client, do not have to be
disclosed.

The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice, which became official
guidance for the LGPS on 1st April 2015, includes practical guidance
and expected standards (i.e. best practice) in relation to reporting
breaches. This policy and procedure has been designed to comply with
the guidance and ensure that Shropshire LGPS follows best practice in
relation to reporting breaches.

Breaches can occur in relation to a wide variety of the tasks normally
associated with the administrative function of a scheme such as
keeping records, internal controls, calculating benefits and making
investment or investment-related decisions.

All reporters should have procedures in place to meet their reporting duty and
there should be no reliance placed on waiting for others to report. Practical
guidance in relation to this legal requirement is included in The Pensions
Regulator’s Code of Practice and this policy and procedure has been developed
to reflect that guidance.

Page 64

| Contact: James Walton on (01743) 255011




Pensions Committee, 27 November 2015: NEW POLICY — BREACHES POLICY

5.7.  The policy and procedure set out in Appendix A details how individuals
responsible for reporting and whistleblowing can identify, assess and report
(or record if not reported) a breach of law relating to the Fund. It aims to
ensure individuals responsible are able to meet their legal obligations, avoid
placing any reliance on others to report. The procedure will also assist in
providing an early warning of possible malpractice and reduce risk.

6. Conclusion

6.1 Following approval this policy will be issued to all employers and
published on the website.

6.2  All individuals with a role in the LGPS have a duty to report breaches of
law when they have reasonable cause to believe that a breach of
material significance to the Pensions Regulator has taken place.
Where a breach is not deemed material there is a requirement to
record the breach.

6.3 Inline with guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator, Shropshire
LGPS has developed a policy and procedure for ensuring those
responsible for reporting and whistleblowing can identify, assess and
report (or record if not reported) a breach of law relating to the Fund.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A — Breaches Policy

Page 65

| Contact: James Walton on (01743) 255011




This page is intentionally left blank



SHROPSHIRE PENSION BOARD

Reporting Breaches Procedure

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Introduction

This document sets out the procedures to be followed by certain persons
involved with the Shropshire County Pension Fund, the Local Government
Pension Scheme managed and administered by Shropshire Council, in relation
to reporting breaches of the law to the Pensions Regulator.

Breaches can occur in relation to a wide variety of the tasks normally associated
with the administrative function of a scheme such as keeping records, internal
controls, calculating benefits and making investment or investment-related
decisions.

This Procedure document applies, in the main, to:

¢ all members of the Shropshire Pension Board;

¢ all officers involved in the management of the Pension Fund ;

e personnel of the pensions administrator providing day to day
administration services to the Fund, and any professional advisers
including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund managers; and

e officers of employers participating in the Shropshire County Pension
Fund who are responsible for pension matters.

Requirements

This section clarifies the full extent of the legal requirements and to whom they
apply.

Pensions Act 2004
Section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) imposes a requirement on the
following persons:

a trustee or manager of an occupational or personal pension scheme;

a member of the pension board of a public service pension scheme;

a person who is otherwise involved in the administration of such a
scheme an occupational or personal pension scheme;

the employer in relation to an occupational pension scheme;

a professional adviser in relation to such a scheme; and

a person who is otherwise involved in advising the trustees or managers
of an occupational or personal pension scheme in relation to the
scheme, to report a matter to The Pensions Regulator as soon as is
reasonably practicable where that person has reasonable cause to
believe that:

(a) a legal duty relating to the administration of the scheme has not been
or is not being complied with, and

Page 67



23

24

3.1

(b) the failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to The
Pensions Regulator.

The Act states that a person can be subject to a civil penalty if he or she fails
to comply with this requirement without a reasonable excuse. The duty to report
breaches under the Act overrides any other duties the individuals listed

above may have. However the duty to report does not override ‘legal privilege’'.
This means that, generally, communications between a professional legal
adviser and their client, or a person representing their client, in connection with
legal advice being given to the client, do not have to be disclosed.

The Pension Regulator's Code of Practice
Practical guidance in relation to this legal requirement is included in The
Pension Regulator’'s Code of Practice including in the following areas:

implementing adequate procedures.

judging whether a breach must be reported.
submitting a report to The Pensions Regulator.
whistleblowing protection and confidentiality.

Application to the Shropshire County Pension Fund

This procedure has been developed to reflect the guidance contained in The
Pension Regulator’'s Code of Practice in relation to the Shropshire County
Pension Fund and this document sets out how the Board will strive to achieve
best practice through use of a formal reporting breaches procedure.

The Shropshire County Pension Fund Reporting Breaches Procedure

The following procedure details how individuals responsible for reporting and
whistleblowing can identify, assess and report (or record if not reported) a
breach of law relating to the Shropshire County Pension Fund. It aims to ensure
individuals responsible are able to meet their legal obligations, avoid placing
any reliance on others to report. The procedure will also assist in providing an
early warning of possible malpractice and reduce risk.

Clarification of the law

Individuals may need to refer to regulations and guidance when considering
whether or not to report a possible breach. Some of the key provisions are
shown below:

e Section 70(1) and 70(2) of the Pensions Act 2004
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/contents

e Employment Rights Act 1996:
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/18/contents

e Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of
Information) Regulations 2013 (Disclosure Regulations):
www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2734/contents/made

e Public Service Pension Schemes Act 2013:
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/contents

e Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (various):

Page 68



3.2

33

3.4

http://www.lgpsregs.org/timelineregs/Default.html (pre 2014 schemes)
http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/regs-legislation (2014 scheme)

e The Pensions Regulator’'s Code of Practice:
http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-
administration-publicservice-pension-schemes.aspx
In particular, individuals should refer to the section on ‘Reporting
breaches of the law’, and for information about reporting late payments
of employee or employer contributions, the section of the code on
‘Maintaining contributions’.

Further guidance and assistance can be provided by the Head of Finance
Governance & Assurance (s151 Officer) and Monitoring Officer, provided that
requesting this assistance will not result in alerting those responsible for any
serious offence (where the breach is in relation to such an offence).

Clarification when a breach is suspected

Individuals need to have reasonable cause to believe that a breach has
occurred, not just a suspicion. Where a breach is suspected the individual
should carry out further checks to confirm the breach has occurred. Where the
individual does not know the facts or events, it will usually be appropriate to
check with the Head of Finance Governance & Assurance, the Monitoring
Officer, a member of the Pensions Committee or Pension Board or others who
are able to explain what has happened. However there are some instances
where it would not be appropriate to make further checks, for example, if the
individual has become aware of theft, suspected fraud or another serious
offence and they are also aware that by making further checks there is a risk of
either alerting those involved or hampering the actions of the police or a
regulatory authority. In these cases The Pensions Regulator should be
contacted without delay.

Determining whether the breach is likely to be of material significance
To decide whether a breach is likely to be of material significance an individual
should consider the following, both separately and collectively:

cause of the breach (what made it happen);

effect of the breach (the consequence(s) of the breach);
reaction to the breach; and

wider implications of the breach.

Further details on the above four considerations are provided in Appendix A to
this procedure.

The individual should use the traffic light framework described in Appendix B to
help assess the material significance of each breach and to formally support
and document their decision.

A decision tree is provided below to show the process for deciding whether or

not a breach has taken place and whether it is materially significant and
therefore requires to be reported.

Page 69


http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-

Decision-tree: deciding whether to report

Check what the
larwy reguires.

if wou are not sure,
ask for advice

Check the facts.
A=k the people
webhio can confirm

them

Iz there reasonable
cause to believe
that a breach has
taken place?

Mo

Yes

I= the breach likely
to be of material
significance to the
Pensions
FRegulator?

w

Consider the:

= cause of

= effect of

= reaction to

= wyyider implications
of the breach

Mo duty 1o report

L]

Clear cut
Red bresch
Feport to
Pensions

Fegulstor and
recorc

Clear cut Green
breach. Don't
report to the
Pensions
Regulator bt
recordd

Mot clesar cut
Amber breach
Consider cortext,

apply principles

g of code & refer to|
guiclance if
NECESSary.

Use judgement
and decide

|

Report and record
(=1
Dont report bt
record

3.5  Referral to a level of seniority for a decision to be made on whether to report

Shropshire Council has a designated Monitoring Officer to ensure the Council
acts and operates within the law. They are considered to have appropriate
experience to help investigate whether there is reasonable cause to believe a
breach has occurred, to check the law and facts of the case, to maintain records
of all breaches and to assist in any reporting to The Pensions Regulator, where
appropriate. If breaches relate to late or incorrect payment of contributions or
pension benefits, the matter should be highlighted to the Head of Finance

Page 70



3.6

3.7.

3.8

3.9

Governance & Assurance or the Head of Treasury & Pensions at the earliest
opportunity to ensure the matter is resolved as a matter of urgency. Individuals
must bear in mind, however, that the involvement of the Monitoring Officer is to
help clarify the potential reporter's thought process and to ensure this
procedure is followed. The reporter remains responsible for the final decision
as to whether a matter should be reported to The Pensions Regulator.

The matter should not be referred to any of these officers if doing so will alert
any person responsible for a possible serious offence to the investigation (as
highlighted in section 2). If that is the case, the individual should report the
matter to The Pensions Regulator setting out the reasons for reporting,
including any uncertainty — a telephone call to the Regulator before the
submission may be appropriate, particularly in more serious breaches.

Dealing with complex cases

The Head of Finance Governance & Assurance or Monitoring Officer may be
able to provide guidance on particularly complex cases. Information may also
be available from national resources such as the Scheme Advisory Board or
the LGPC Secretariat (part of the LG Group - http://www.Igpsregs.org/). If
timescales allow, legal advice or other professional advice can be sought and
the case can be discussed at the next Board meeting.

Timescales for reporting

The Pensions Act and Pension Regulators Code require that if an individual
decides to report a breach, the report must be made in writing as soon as
reasonably practicable. Individuals should not rely on waiting for others to
report and nor is it necessary for a reporter to gather all the evidence which The
Pensions Regulator may require before taking action. A delay in reporting may
exacerbate or increase the risk of the breach. The time taken to reach the
judgements on “reasonable cause to believe” and on “material significance”
should be consistent with the speed implied by ‘as soon as reasonably
practicable’. In particular, the time taken should reflect the seriousness of the
suspected breach.

Early identification of very serious breaches

In cases of immediate risk to the scheme, for instance, where there is any
indication of dishonesty, The Pensions Regulator does not expect reporters to
seek an explanation or to assess the effectiveness of proposed remedies. They
should only make such immediate checks as are necessary. The more serious
the potential breach and its consequences, the more urgently reporters should
make these necessary checks. In cases of potential dishonesty the reporter
should avoid, where possible, checks which might alert those implicated. In
serious cases, reporters should use the quickest means possible to alert The
Pensions Regulator to the breach.

Recording all breaches even if they are not reported

The record of past breaches may be relevant in deciding whether to report a
breach (for example it may reveal a systemic issue). Shropshire Council will
maintain a record of all breaches identified by individuals and reporters should
therefore provide copies of reports to the Head of Finance Governance &

Page 71


http://www.lgpsregs.org/

3.10

3.11

Assurance. Records of unreported breaches should also be provided as soon
as reasonably practicable and certainly no later than within 20 working days of
the decision made not to report. These will be recorded alongside all reported
breaches. The record of all breaches (reported or otherwise) will be included in
the quarterly Monitoring Report at each Pension Committee, and this will also
be shared with the Pension Board.

Reporting a breach

Reports must be submitted in writing via The Pensions Regulator’s online
system at www.tpr.gov.uk/exchange, or by post, email or fax, and should be
marked urgent if appropriate. If necessary, a written report can be preceded by
a telephone call. Reporters should ensure they receive an acknowledgement
for any report they send to The Pensions Regulator. The Pensions Regulator
will acknowledge receipt of all reports within five working days and may contact
reporters to request further information. Reporters will not usually be informed
of any actions taken by The Pensions Regulator due to restrictions on the
disclosure of information.

As a minimum, individuals reporting should provide:

full scheme name (Shropshire County Pension Fund);

description of breach(es);

any relevant dates;

name, position and contact details;

role in connection to the scheme; and

employer name or name of scheme manager (the latter is Shropshire
Council).

If possible, reporters should also indicate:

e the reason why the breach is thought to be of material significance to The
Pensions Regulator;

e scheme address (provided at the end of this procedures document);

e scheme manager contact details (provided at the end of this procedures
document);

e pension scheme registry number (PSR - ???7?); and

e whether the breach has been reported before.

The reporter should provide further information or reports of further breaches if
this may help The Pensions Regulator in the exercise of its functions. The
Pensions Regulator may make contact to request further information.

Confidentiality

If requested, The Pensions Regulator will do its best to protect a reporter’s
identity and will not disclose information except where it is lawfully required to
do so. If an individual's employer decides not to report and the individual
employed by them disagrees with this and decides to report a breach
themselves, they may have protection under the Employment Rights Act 1996
if they make an individual report in good faith.

Page 72



3.12 Reporting to Pensions Committee and Pension Board
A report will be presented to the Pensions Committee and the Pension Board
on a quarterly basis setting out:

all breaches, including those reported to The Pensions Regulator and
those unreported, with the associated dates;

in relation to each breach, details of what action was taken and the result
of any action (where not confidential);

any future actions for the prevention of the breach in question being
repeated; and

highlighting new breaches which have arisen in the last year/since the
previous meeting.

This information will also be provided upon request by any other individual or
organisation (excluding sensitive/confidential cases or ongoing cases where
discussion may influence the proceedings). An example of the information to
be included in the quarterly reports is provided in Appendix C to this procedure.

3.13 Review
This Reporting Breaches Procedure was originally developed in August 2015.
It will be kept under review and updated as considered appropriate by the Head
of Finance Governance & Assurance. It may be changed as a result of legal or
regulatory changes, evolving best practice and ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the procedure.

Further Information

If you require further information about reporting breaches or this procedure, please

contact:

Justin Bridges — Head of Treasury & Pensions
Email: justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 01743 252072

Debbie Sharp — Pension Administration Manager
Email: debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 01743 252192

Shropshire County Pension Fund, Shropshire Council, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate,
Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND

Designated officer contact details:
1) Head of Finance Governance & Assurance — James Walton
Email: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 01743 255011

2) Monitoring Officer — Claire Porter
Email: claire.porter@shropshire.gov.uk

Page 73


mailto:justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:claire.porter@shropshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 01743 252763

Page 74



Appendix A

Determining whether a breach is likely to be of material significance

To decide whether a breach is likely to be of material significance individuals should
consider the following elements, both separately and collectively:

cause of the breach (what made it happen);

effect of the breach (the consequence(s) of the breach);
reaction to the breach; and

wider implications of the breach.

The cause of the breach
Examples of causes which are likely to be of concern to The Pensions Regulator are
provided below:

acting, or failing to act, in deliberate contravention of the law;

dishonesty;

incomplete or inaccurate advice;

poor administration, i.e. failure to implement adequate administration
procedures;

poor governance; or

slow or inappropriate decision-making practices.

When deciding whether a cause is likely to be of material significance individuals
should also consider:

whether the breach has been caused by an isolated incident such as a power
outage, fire, flood or a genuine one-off mistake.

whether there have been any other breaches (reported to The Pensions
Regulator or not) which when taken together may become materially significant.

The effect of the breach

Examples of the possible effects (with possible causes) of breaches which are
considered likely to be of material significance to The Pensions Regulator in the
context of the LGPS are given below:

Committee/Board members not having enough knowledge and understanding,
resulting in pension boards not fulfilling their roles, the scheme not being
properly governed and administered and/or scheme managers breaching other
legal requirements.

Conflicts of interest of Committee or Board members, resulting in them being
prejudiced in the way in which they carry out their role and/or the ineffective
governance and administration of the scheme and/or scheme managers
breaching legal requirements.

Poor internal controls, leading to schemes not being run in accordance with
their scheme regulations and other legal requirements, risks not being properly
identified and managed and/or the right money not being paid to or by the
scheme at the right time.

Page 75



e Inaccurate or incomplete information about benefits and scheme information
provided to members, resulting in members not being able to effectively plan or
make decisions about their retirement.

e Poor member records held, resulting in member benefits being calculated
incorrectly and/or not being paid to the right person at the right time.

e Misappropriation of assets, resulting in scheme assets not being safeguarded.

e Other breaches which result in the scheme being poorly governed, managed or
administered.

The reaction to the breach
A breach is likely to be of concern and material significance to The Pensions Regulator
where a breach has been identified and those involved:

e do not take prompt and effective action to remedy the breach and identify and
tackle its cause in order to minimise risk of recurrence;

e are not pursuing corrective action to a proper conclusion; or

o fail to notify affected scheme members where it would have been appropriate
to do so.

The wider implications of the breach

Reporters should also consider the wider implications when deciding whether a breach
must be reported. The breach is likely to be of material significance to The Pensions
Regulator where the fact that a breach has occurred makes it more likely that further
breaches will occur within the Fund or, if due to maladministration by a third party,
further breaches will occur in other pension schemes.

Page 76



Appendix B

Traffic light framework for deciding whether or not to report

It is recommended that those responsible for reporting use the traffic light framework when
deciding whether to report to The Pensions Regulator. This is illustrated below:

Where the cause, effect, reaction and wider implications of a breach,
when considered together, are likely to be of material significance.

These must be reported to The Pensions Regulator.

Example: Several members’ benefits have been calculated incorrecily.
The errors have not been recognised and no action has been taken to
identify and tackle the cause or to correct the errors.

Where the cause, effect, reaction and wider implications of a breach,
AMBER when considered together, may be of material significance. They might
consist of several failures of administration that, although not significant
in themselves, have a cumulative significance because steps have not
been taken to put things right. You will need to exercise your own
judgement to determine whether the breach is likely to be of material
significance and should be reported.

Example: Several members’ benefits have been calculated incorrecitly.
The errors have been corrected, with no financial detriment to the
members. However the breach was caused by a system error which
may have wider implications for other public service schemes using the
same system.

Where the cause, effect, reaction and wider implications of a breach,
when considered together, are not likely to be of material significance.
These should be recorded but do not need to be reported.

Example: A member’s benefits have been calculated incorrectly. This
was an isolated incident, which has been promptly identified and
corrected, with no financial detriment to the member. Procedures have
been put in place to mitigate against this happening again.

All breaches should be recorded even if the decision is not to report.

When using the traffic light framework individuals should consider the content of the red,
amber and green sections for each of the cause, effect, reaction and wider implications of the
breach, before you consider the four together. Some useful examples of this is framework is

provided by The Pensions Regulator at the following link:

http:// www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-related-report-breaches.aspx

Page 77



Q/ abed

Example Record of Breaches

Appendix C

Date Category Description Possible effect Reaction of Reported / Not | Outcome of Outstanding
(e.g. and cause of breach and relevant reported report actions
administration, | of breach wider parties to (with and/or
contributions, implications breach justification if investigations
funding, not reported
investment, and dates)
criminal
activity)

*New breaches since the previous meeting should be highlighted



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	9 Statement of Investment Principles
	9.  Appendix A Statement of Investment Principles (revised November 2015)

	10 Corporate Governance Monitoring
	10.  Appendix A Manager Voting Activity Reports (July - September 2015)
	10.  Appendix B BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports (July - September 2015)

	11 Pensions Administration Monitoring
	11.  Appendix A Performance Monitoring

	12 New Policy - Breaches Policy
	12.  Appendix A Breaches Reporting Policy

	14 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)
	15 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3)
	16 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 30 September 2015 (Exempted by Category 3)
	16.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Investment Monitoring Report to 30 September 2015
	16.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Member Questions


